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OP~RATING R~SULTS 

FOR THE YEAR 
Net sales 

Operating income 

Net income 

Per Depositary Share: 

Net income 

Cash dividends 

AT YEAR-END 
Stockholders' equity 

Total assets 

Number of employees 

SONY CORPORI\TION 1\ND 
CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDII\RIES 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
Year ended March 31 

Millions of yen 
except per share amounts 

1989 1990 

¥2,145,329 ¥2,879,856 
160,499 295,191 
72,469 102,808 

¥ 241.7 ¥ 306.9 
44.6 50.0 

¥ 911,816 ¥1,430,058 
2,364,775 4,370,085 

78,900 95,600 

Percent change 
1990/1989 

+34.2% 
+83.9 
+41.9 

+27.0 

+56.8 
+84.8 

Thousands of 
U.S. dollars except 
per share amounts 

1990 

$18,343,032 
1,880,197 

654,828 

$ 1.95 
0.32 

$ 9,108,650 
27,834,936 

Note: U.S. dollar amounts have been translated from yen, for convenience only, at the rate of ¥157 = U.S.$1, the approximate Tokyo foreign exchange market rate as of March 30, 1990, 

as described in Note 2 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS 

For Sony, the fiscal year ended March 31, 1990, was one that 

demands retrospection in this annual report. 

In electronics, our products achieved significant sales growth 

across all divisions and geographic regions. During the year in 

review, we made major advances in our 8mm video products 

business as part of our wholehearted commitment to 

developing the genre of "personal video:' 

In entertainment, in November 1989, we purchased Columbia 

Pictures Entertainment, Inc. (CPE), adding image-based software 

to our software business. We have emphasized strengthening 

these operations, primarily through our record business. 

As a consequence, during the term under review, we were 

able to lay the foundation for future growth in both electronics 

and entertainment while attaining unprecedented performances 

in both sales and profits. 

• Performance Highlights 

Sony's consolidated net sales for the fiscal year ended March 

31, 1990, reached ¥'2,880 billion ($18,343 million), an increase 

of 34.2% over the previous year. Operating income rose 83.9%, 

to ¥'295 billion ($1 ,880 million), and net income advanced 

41.9%, to ¥'1 03 billion ($655 million). Primary net income per 

Depositary Share (each Depositary Share represents one share of 

Common Stock) rose 27.0%, to ¥306.9 ($1.95). Stockholders' 

equity per Depositary Share was ¥'4,308 ($27.44), compared 

with ¥'3,226 the previous year. 

Subject to shareholders' approval at the General Meeting of 

Shareholders to be held in Tokyo on June 28, 1990, Sony will 

pay to shareholders of record as of March 31, 1990, a cash 

dividend of ¥'25 (before deduction of withholding taxes) per 

Depositary Share for the six-month period ended March 31, 

1990. This payment will bring the total annual cash dividend 

for the fiscal year ended March 31, 1990, to ¥'50 ($0.32) per 

Depositary Share, an increase of ¥5.4 over the previous year. 

In July 1989, we made a public offering of 30 million shares 

of Common Stock in Japan to be used chiefly for capital ex

penditures. Additionally, in February 1990 in Japan, Sony issued 

¥'1 00 billion in unsecured yen-denominated bonds with warrants 

and ¥'300 billion in unsecured convertible bonds primarily to 

refinance the acquisition of CPE. 
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• l]ectronics 

In electronics products, such factors as the introduction 

of a highly competitive Handycam 8mm video camcorder and 

healthy sales of broadcast-use video equipment, supported 

by digital VTRs, contributed to brisk sales of video equipment 

during the year. Audio equipment sales-underpinned by such 

products as CD players, mini-component stereos, and the 

headphone stereo Walkman-continued to be favorable. 

Television sales expanded across all regions centering on 

large-screen sets, and computer displays also registered sub

stantial gains. In the Other products category, although the 

fast-paced growth in semiconductors slowed somewhat, sales 

of such products as 3.5-inch micro floppydisk systems, work

stations, and telephones exhibited healthy growth similar to 

that witnessed in other divisional categories. 

Research and development expenditures during the fiscal year 

ended March 31, 1990, reached ¥'165 billion ($1 ,052 million), 

an increase of approximately 16% over the corresponding 

period a year ago and represented 5. 7% of consolidated net 

sales. Sony believes R&D activities are essential to reinforcing 

its operational base in consumer- and industrial-use electronics 

and is committed to continue fueling its R&D efforts aggres

sively. Furthermore, capital expenditures during the period 

soared approximately 50% over the previous year, to ¥324 billion 

($2,062 million), reflecting vigorous funding to expand and 

fortify our production capabilities of semiconductors; image

based devices, such as color picture tubes; magnetic 

products; and audio and visual equipment. 

• l:ntertainment 

In our Record business, both CBS Records Inc. and the 

CBS/Sony Group Inc. in Japan turned in exceptionally strong 

performances. Contributing to growth in revenues were estab

lished superstars and new artists who developed into solid 

successes. This favorable performance is attributable to the 

expansion of the CD market which has been supported by 

the widespread adoption of CD players, and we expect demand 

for CDs will become even brisker in the future. In addition, 



Akio Morita, Chairman of the Board (right), 

and Norio Ohga, President and Chief Executive Officer 
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sales of such image-based software as music videos and 

laserdiscs are on a steep uptrend. Consequently, Record 

division sales surged 33.8% compared with the previous year. 

In November 1989, Sony purchased CPE, one of the 

leading motion picture companies in the United States, for 

approximately $3.4 billion. Sony also acquired The Guber

Peters Entertainment Company for approximately $200 million 

and welcomed Peter Guber and Jon Peters as top management 

of CPE. These measures stemmed from a decision that to 

develop our hardware business in the future, it is necessary 

to augment our music software with image-based software. 

• future Operating l:nvironment 

and Managerial Policies 

Sony's operating environment has become increasingly difficult 

to forecast due to the nature of Japan's and overseas financial 

and capital markets, future global economic trends, worsening 

economic and trade friction, and heightening price competition. 

Amid this setting, Sony, while continuing to provide services 

and products that give lasting pleasure to customers, creating 

a corporate structure that can respond flexibly to any change 

in the business climate, and making every effort to improve 

performance-all to meet your expectations, will pursue the 

following policies: 

first, in consumer products, we seek to actively develop and 

introduce attractive new products, strengthen our marketing 

and service structure, and keep a closer watch over product 

quality control. 

Second, in industrial products, we intend to add further 

strength to such operations as video equipment and displays 

and, by incorporating cutting-edge technologies, develop our 

business to meet a wider range of market needs. We will also 

continue to actively develop new technologies and expand the 

scope of operations through products that support a vast 

spectrum of business areas, such as semiconductors, electronic 

devices, and equipment related to computers, information 

processing, and telecommunications. 
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Third, by adding image-based software primarily from 

CPE to its music software business, which has been led chiefly 

by the CBS Records group, Sony will strive to further expand 

and develop its software business while gaining synergies 

with its hardware business. 

Fourth, while promoting local procurement of components 

and production, Sony will upgrade all facets of its operations, 

from R&D to marketing to bring its overseas operations in 

even closer contact with local communities. 

finally, Sony will continue to improve its profitability and 

financial soundness by reducing costs and streamlining opera

tions in all fields-from design and manufacturing through 

sales and distribution-conducting stricter inventory control, 

and executing carefully appropriated capital expenditures. 

May 24, 1990 

Akio Morita 
Chairman of the Board 

Norio Ohga 
President and Chief Executive Officer 



Video fquipment 
Enc@mpasses horne-Ms~ VllRs, laserdisc players, 
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:Mo\(ie Business 
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ae(llruisiNoms IDf (olumbia Pie~l!.lres Emtertainmefilt, lne., 

and fh~ tiuber-lt'eters Emtertainrnent C®m!i)any. 



• 8mm Video Products 

Sony's new ultracompact and lightweight 

Handycam camcorder with a body weighing 

790 grams (1. 7 pounds) became a runaway 

success for Sony and a sensation in the 

camcorder market following its introduction in 

Japan in June 1989 and subsequent release in 

the U.S. and Europe. In addition to making a 

tremendous contribution to 8mm video product 

sales, the Handycam's convenient size is perfect 

for people on the go and thus has broadened 

the horizons of the camcorder market. In May 

1990, Sony announced the development of 

subsequent models, one weighing even less-

690 grams (1.5 pounds)-and another with such 

features as higher picture quality, an eight-times 

power zoom lens, and hi-fi stereo. We will 

launch these models in Japan in summer 1990 

and plan to introduce them overseas the 

following fall. 

In April 1990, we marketed a new model 

in our "video Hi8" series of high quality 8mm 

video products in Japan. The unit is smaller and 

lighter than previous models and equipped with 

hi-fi stereo, a wireless remote control, and other 

advanced functions. We expect to launch this 

product overseas beginning in summer 1990. 

Sony has been opening new avenues in 

"personal video;' in which people can enjoy video 

entertainment anywhere and anytime. As one 

SAL~S OF VID~O ~QUIPM~NT (Billion ¥l 

Video equipment sales 

for the year ended March 

31, 1990, rose 29.7% 

over the previous year, to 

¥7 44 billion ($4, 73 7 

million), representing 

25.8% of consolidated 

net sales. Sales for the 

term ended March 31, 

1990, expanded across 

all major product sectors 

with 8mm video products 

registering exceptionally 

strong growth. 

'90 ------------------

'89 ----------------·573 
'88 -------------451 
'87 *·----· 189 '86 -------------·481 *Five-month fiscal period ended March 3 1, 1987 
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facet of these efforts, Sony has been commer

cializing models of the Video Walkman that 

combine a liquid crystal display (LCD) color TV 

and an 8mm VTR. During the year under review, 

we launched new models incorporating an ultra

small videotape drive mechanism "FL Mecha" 

that allowed for further reductions in size and 

weight. We also released several low-priced 

8mm movie software titles. Additionally, Video 

Walkman units lent to passengers aboard several 

airline companies' flights since summer 1989 

have been well received. 



\_-

• Home-Use 1/2·inch VTRs 

and Laserdisc Players 

Sales of 1 /2-inch VTRs saw favorable growth, 

buoyed by the contribution of VHS decks. In the 

field of high quality VTRs utilizing metal tape, 

we introduced a new model in the ED Beta 

line and in December 1989 began marketing 

a Super-VHS (S-VHS) model that offers higher 

picture quality in a VHS format in Japan

further consolidating our position as the only 

We have made this new 
model in our "video Hi8 .. 
line of high quality Hi
Band 8mm camcorders 
smaller and lighter than its 
predecessors. Its electronic 
variable speed shutter 
captures every detail of the 
fastest-paced action-such 
as a golf swing-with 
razor-sharp clarity. 

This ultrasmall and light· 
weight Handycam camcorder 
has been a worldwide 
success. Its compact size 
makes it easy to use on 
the road and accounts for 
its popularity particularly 
among travelers. 

manufacturer offering all three existing formats 

of home video technology. On the production 

side, we are expected to commence production 

of 1 /2-inch VTRs in Malaysia in fall 1990. The 

Malaysian plant will play an important role 

in keeping apace with overseas demand for 

our VTRs. 

As for laserdisc players, Sony's MultiDisc 

Player-which enables users to enjoy the entire 

spectrum of home-use optical discs, including 

laserdiscs and CDs-made a solid gain in sales. 



• Broadcast· and Professional-Use VTRs 

Since Sony introduced the world's first D-2 format 

composite digital VfR system in summer 1988, 

its efforts to promote digitalization of broadcast

and professional-use VfRs have progressed at 

a rapid pace. In May 1989, Sony received many 

orders from CBS Inc. for its Digital Cart System 

incorporating the 0-2 format digital VfRs for 

automating the broadcasting of commercial 

spots and other program material. Sony dis

played several of its new VfR systems that 

utilize digital technology at the National 

Association of Broadcasters (NAB) Show held 

in March 1990 in Atlanta, in the United States, 

promoting the arrival of digitalization of 

broadcast equipment. 

Sony's Betacam SP systems for electronic 

news gathering, studio editing, and broadcasting 

have amassed a loyal following among TV stations 

The Betacam SP system 
makes video news gathering, 
editing, and broadcasting 
possible in a unified sys
tem using 1/2-inch video· 
cassettes. The system is 
widely used at broadcast 
stations and production 
houses around the world. 

Sony's MultiDisc Players 
are compatible with the 
wide range of home-use 
optical discs, such as laser· 
discs and COs, and this 
new model is equipped 
with various digital picture 
functions that allow for 
special effects to further 
expand the realm of 
audiovisual entertainment. 
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and production studios, and sales during the 

period under review continued on a firm note. 

In broadcast- and professional-use video 

cameras, Sony, a pioneer in charge-coupled 

device (CCD) cameras, has continued to develop 

new products in its line of three-chip ceo color 

video cameras, which registered solid sales 

growth. During the year under review, we 

launched new models, such as one for high 

resolution filming outdoors and one with 

advanced functions for full-fledged studio use. 

A large number of our D-2 format digital 

VfRs, Betacam SP systems, and broadcast-use 

video cameras were used by the Italian National 

Broadcasting Corporation, the host broadcast 

company at the World Cup soccer matches 

held in Italy in early summer 1990. 

In the field of HDTV (high-definition television), 

in March 1990 Sony announced the development 

of a professional-use 1 /2-inch cassette VfR to 

which it expects to begin marketing within the 

year in Japan. Sony has already introduced into 

the market a variety of HOlY-related equipment, 

including a digital VfR and a videodisc player 

and will continue to develop promising new 

products for the HDTV market. 



• CD Players 

Sony continued its efforts to promote demand 

for its CD players by offering a wide spectrum 

of separate component types-from low-priced 

models to top-of-the-line products-and by 

marketing unique portable models incorporating 

technology to make them even smaller and 

lighter. In addition, we marketed new CD play

ers to be built into radio-cassette tape recorders, 

stressing enhanced sound quality and improving 

functionality and ease of operation. Further, 

models incorporated into mini-component stereos 

and car stereo units were also actively introduced 

into the market and achieved sales growth. 

To meet the needs of the burgeoning market 

for CD players, Sony has boosted the production 

capabilities of its CD player plant in Alsace, 

France. In addition, we have expanded our audio 

equipment production facilities in Malaysia and 

SALfS OF AUDIO fQUIPMfNT (Billion ¥) 

Audio equipment sales 
grew 28.8%, to ¥722 
billion ($4,600 million), 
accounting for 25. 1% 
of consolidated net sales. 
Sales during the year 
under review were robust 
across the board in this 
category, led by ex
ceptional growth in 
CD players. 

The percentage of radio· 
cassette tape recorders 
equipped with CD players 
continues to climb. This 
model features advanced 
editing capabilities for 
recording from CD to tape 
and offers superior quality 
sound through well· 
balanced bass and treble. 

To meet diversifying needs 
in the mini-component 
stereo market, Sony 
launched the "pixy" series 
in summer 1989 in Japan. 
These models allow for 
more freedom and economy 
of space in interior layout, 
and their stylish designs 
have contributed to their 
outstanding success. 

'90 ---------------------· 722 '89 ·----------------561 '88 --------------479 '87*·----· 190 '86 ------------415 *Five-month fiscal period ended March 3 1, 1987 
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have begun manufacturing CD players, mini

component stereos, and other equipment there. 

• Mini-Component Stereos 

Sony's mini-component stereos have a solid 

reputation for superior sound quality and 

functions. During the year under review, we 

launched in Japan a new mini-component 

stereo that is smaller in size and has a free

layout design superior to models of the past, 



allowing greater flexibility in interior decoration. 

This product was a resounding success and 

tapped new frontiers in the mini-component 

stereo market. 

• Digital Audio Tape (OAT) Decks 
In summer 1990, Sony is scheduled to launch 

a new consumer-use DAT deck that meets the 

new standard for DAT equipment in Japan and 

the United States. The new standard allows for 

one generation of digital to digital recording 

from such sources as CDs. In the future, we 

will introduce this model in European markets 

while bolstering our lineup of DAT decks that 

meet the new standard and actively promoting 

the expansion of the DAT market. 

This new Walkman with 
remote control offers im· 
proved operability, enabling 
the listener to determine 
tape direction and operat
ing status with light and 
by sound. 
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• Headphone Stereo Cassette Players 
Through the years, Sony has endeavored to 

introduce new products for the headphone 

stereo Walkman, and the Walkman has endured 

as a locomotive force in the headphone stereo 

cassette player market. During the year under 

review, we introduced models with remote con

trols and fast-recharging batteries while launch

ing new products that offer even better sound 

quality and are easier to use to meet ever 

diversifying customer demands. 

• Car Stereos 
In car stereos, the market for units that bring 

forth the superior sound quality and ease of 

operation of CD players is flourishing. Sony's 

car stereos have recorded major sales gains, and 

its new models, notably one with a CD player 

that incorporates a 1 0-disc autochanger, have 

been very well received in the market. 



• Other Audio Products 

During the year under review, we introduced 

such new products as a radio kit to our My First 

Sony line of audio equipment for children that 

is highly regarded for imaginative, easy-to-use 

designs. 

Radio sales were healthy, buoyed by the 

introduction of ultraslim card-type models and the 

world-band receiver, capable of capturing short

wave news broadcasts from around the globe. 

Sony has decided to add magnetic tape coat

ing facilities-targeted to become operational 

in spring 1991-to its videotape assembly plant 

This upmarket CD player 
and headphone set 
represents the integration 
of Sony's wealth of ex
perience in audio science 
and advanced technology. 
This model has won the 
approval of audiophiles 
who appreciate the ability 
of superior sound quality 
to faithfully relay the 
subtle nuances in music. 
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in Dax, France. This facility will serve as a 

valuable supply base in Europe for audiotape 

and videotape materials and signifies the 

beginning of integrated production in Europe to 

follow that already underway in the U.S. 

• Professional-Use Audio (quipment 

We are developing our professional-use audio 

equipment operations, centering on digital audio

tape recorders, digital audio processors, CD 

players, CD mastering systems, and microphones. 



res 
• Home-Use TVs and Monitors 

In line with the increasing popularity of high

resolution video decks and laserdisc players, 

Sony has endeavored to provide Trinitron color 

televisions with enhanced picture quality and 

larger screens. During the period, Sony launched 

several new large-screen Trinitron sets with life

like ambience to meet consumer demand for 

a variety of image-based software, leading to 

exceptionally strong sales of Trinitron color TVs 

in Japan and overseas. 

Sony has promoted integrated production

from production of Trinitron color picture tubes 

to assembly of finished televisions-in Japan, 

the United States, and Europe. In the U.S., 

Sony has been producing color TVs at its plant 

in San Diego, and to further meet rising demand 

in the U.S. and around the world, Sony announced 

SAL~S OF T~L~VISIONS (Billion ¥') 

'90 

Television sales for 
the period under review 
climbed 30.6%, to 
¥446 billion ($2,844 mil
lion), constituting 15.5% 
of consolidated net sales. 
During the term, color TV 
sales recorded vigorous 
growth, spurred by the 
popularity of large-screen 
sets and rising demand 
in Japan for satellite 
broadcast reception sys
tems and related equip
ment. In professional-use 
equipment, sales of 
computer displays surged 
across all geographic 
regions, most notably in 
the U.S. and furope. 

HDTV-related equipment 
matches the superior picture 
quality of 35mm film and 
is expected to find myriad 
applications in the motion 
picture industry. Shown 
here is an example of a 
video theater using an 
HDTV projector. 

446 

'89 ----------------· 342 '88 --------------- 315 '87*·----- 129 '86 ---------------· 332 *Five-month fiscal period ended March 31, 1987 
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it would build another plant to produce color 

picture tubes for Trinitron color TVs. The facility, 

located in the suburbs of Pittsburgh, is scheduled 

to be brought on stream in autumn 1992. 

We have decided to build a color picture 

tube plant in Singapore for integrated produc

tion of color TVs in Southeast Asia as well. We 

aim to begin operations at this plant in 1991 

to complement the color TV plant in operation 

in Malaysia. 

• Satellite Broadcast Reception Systems 

The popularity of satellite broadcast programs 

in Japan has grown tremendously of late. In 

response, Sony has launched a newly developed, 



highly sensitive antenna and a satellite broadcast 

tuner with excellent picture and sound quality. 

The widening array of satellite broadcast 

programming is expected to expand demand 

for its reception systems for such entertainment, 

and Sony is committed to bolstering its product 

lineup for this market. 

Pictured on this Profeel 
Pro Trinitron color monitor 
is a scene from the dance 
drama "Fifth-V" performed 
in Japan. The stage featured 
images displayed on 144 
Profeel Pro monitors and the 
movements of the players. 
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• Professional-Use Projectors 

Sony is the leader in the worldwide market for 

professional-use projectors. Response has been 

favorable to a color video projector launched 

during the year under review that automatically 

adjusts to an impressive range of input sources, 

from video decks to sophisticated computers, 

and easily projects images of high quality .. 



• Professional-Use Displays 

Our Trinitron color picture displays for computers 

are utilized for such purposes as the main 

display by many computer makers-particularly 

those in the U.S.-and have been highly regarded 

for their exceptional picture quality and resolu

tion. Demand during the period under review 

has been brisk fo~ personal computer displays 

and graphic displays, underpinning a major 

advance in sales. 

• HDTV Monitors and Projectors 

Professional-use HDTVs are finding applications 

outside broadcasting in such areas as enter

tainment, events, sales presentations, and 

corporate advertising. During the fiscal year 

The color video projector 
shown automatically dis· 
criminates between scan
ning frequencies of various 
input sources, permitting 
high-resolution projection 
from computers, video· 
decks, video cameras, and 
other sources without 
complicated adjustments. 

Satellite broadcast programs 
are gaining popularity in 
Japan, and demand for 
Sony's Trinitron color TVs 
with a built-in satellite 
broadcast tuner for easy 
enjoyment of these pro· 
grams has grown in concert 
with this trend. 
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ended March 31, 1990, we brought to market 

a 55-inch rear projector for HDTV that displays 

vivid images even in ambient light. 

Furthermore, at the 1990 NAB Show, 

we displayed a recently developed HDTV projec

tion system with ultralarge screens for commer

cial entertainment purposes, such as at events 

and in video theaters. 



Ct. 
• Semiconductors 

Our semiconductor operations center on metal 

oxide semiconductor (MOS) devices, such as 

static random access memory chips (SRAMs); 

charge-coupled devices (CCDs); and bipolar ICs 

for consumer audiovisual equipment; during 

the year under review, we continued to expand 

production of these devices. As for SRAMs, 

in January 1990, Sony began shipping a one

megabit SRAM with an access time of 35 

nanoseconds and anticipates that the SRAM 

market will grow steadily in the years to come. 

In addition, Sony is upgrading its production 

capabilities for CCDs, activities which will be 

indispensable in expanding its market for 

camcorders, and in February 1990 announced 

the successful development of a CCD with two 

million pixels for HDTV cameras. 

In another significant event also in February 

1990, Sony and Advanced Micro Devices Inc. 

(AMD), of the U.S., concluded agreements for 

the transfer to AMD of certain of Sony's 

leading-edge semiconductor technology and for 

the acquisition by Sony of an AMD microchip 

manufacturing facility in the U.S. The agreement 

SALES OF OTHER PRODUCTS (Billion ¥) 

Sales in the Other 
products category 
expanded 27.6%, to 
¥420 billion ($2,674 
million), accounting for 
14.6% of consolidated 
net sales. During the 
fiscal year ended March 
31, 1990, electronic 
components, computers 
and related equipment, 
and telephones registered 
healthy sales. 

The Palmtop is a compact 
personal computer that by 
applying fuzzy logic accepts 
over 3,500 characters, 
including Japanese kanji, 
the alphabet, numerals or 
symbols, written by hand. 
The unit is equipped with 
the personal information 
processing capabilities 
needed for managing 
schedules, keeping track 
of data on people, and 
performing simple word 
processing. 

Sony will augment the 
NEWS computer lineup with 
a laptop model. This com· 
puter offers-in a laptop 
size-the high performance 
and wide spectrum of 
interfaces found in our 
desktop models. 

'90 ---------------------420 '89 ----------------329 '88 -------------· 271 '87* _____ 102 
'86 -----------·225 *Five-month fiscal period ended March 3 1, 1987 
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will form the basis of a wide range of coopera

tive tie-ups, including those to jointly develop 

next-generation semiconductor manufacturing 

technologies. Sony has implemented a produc

tion line for 0.8-micron wafers-appropriate for 

one-megabit SRAMs-at the plant acquired 

from AMD in San Antonio, Texas. Production 

is scheduled to begin at the end of 1991. 

• Materials Research Corporation 

In September 1989, Sony purchased the 

Materials Research Corporation (MRC), of the 

United States. MRC is a leading manufacturer 

and supplier of sputtering equipment for thin 

metal films, etching equipment, and high-purity 

metal materials and ceramic substrates. We 

expect MRC's technology to find applications in 

Sony's ICs, optical discs, and various magnetic 

devices. 

• Components 

In response to expanding production of audio 

and video equipment in Asia, Sony began 

producing, in Singapore, nonspherical plastic 



lenses to be used in optical pickups for CD 

players and cylinders for use in VTRs. These 

activities shift Sony's cutting-edge technology 

in optical and magnetic devices to Singapore 

and strengthen Sony's supply system for 

components to its Asian and European 

production facilities. 

As part of its commitment to promote 

localization and integrated production in Europe, 

Sony announced it would construct a plant in 

France to manufacture optical pickups for CD 

players and printed circuit boards for AV equip

ment. We expect to bring the plant on stream 

in summer 1991. 

• Computers 

Sony's 32-bit super workstation NEWS, which 

features compact size and advanced functions, 

We have added an image
based series to the My 
first Sony line of audio 
products for children. The 
computer shown lets kids 
draw colorful pictures on a 
TV screen with the attached 
pen. For further enjoyment, 
their masterpieces can be 
preserved on videotape. 

is gaining popularity in a diverse range of fields, 

from software development to desktop publishing. 

In October 1989, we launched-to a favorable 

reception on the market-a top-of-the-line 

model with a central processing unit (CPU) in

corporating a Reduced Instruction Set Computer 

(RISC) processor that has attracted attention 

for its dramatic improvements in processing 

speed. Similarly, we plan to launch a new 

laptop model in summer 1990. 

• Information-Related l:quipment 

Sales of Sony's 3.5-inch micro floppydisk 

systems continued to expand steadily, supported 

by strong demand primarily from U.S. computer 

manufacturers. To meet escalating demand for 

its 3.5-inch micro floppydisk drives, Sony has 

been producing the units in Japan and the U.S. 



Additionally, in May 1990, Sony began 

producing 3.5-inch micro floppydisk drives in 

Malaysia to supply the increasingly brisk output 

at the Asian production facilities of other 

computer makers. 

In December 1989, Sony announced the 

development of an erasable videodisc system. 

Utilizing a 30cm videodisc, the system can 

record and play back up to 60 minutes of 

motion picture images. We aim to bring this 

product to the market in one or two years. 

• Telecommunications l:quipment 
In telecommunications equipment, sales of 

integrated telephone answering machines, cord

less phones, and cellular mobile telephones 

With a compact body 
weighing only 550 grams 
(1.2 pounds), Sony's elec· 
tronic book player, the 
Data Discman, equipped 
with an Scm CD-ROM disk 
drive and a liquid crystal 
display, can facilely search 
for several dictionaries' (up 
to 200 megabytes) worth 
of information recorded on 
its Scm CD-ROM electronic 
book. 
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are advancing favorably. In the U.S., a telecom

munications system, by using a satellite, has 

been developed with such advanced capabilities 

as the ability to estimate the present location of 

moving objects, such as trucks and ships, and 

enable two-way telecommunications. This system 

is attracting attention as a new communications 

method. Sony forecasts strong growth in this 

market and is endeavoring to further develop 

telecommunications equipment, centering on 

terminal equipment for mobile communications. 

• Audiovisual Systems for Airplanes 
In June 1989, Sony purchased from Sundstrand 

Corporation, of the U.S., its Trans Com Systems 

division, the world's leading supplier of audio 

and video entertainment systems for airline 

passengers. In the future, Sony will continue 

to expand its business related to in-flight AV 

entertainment systems, centering on the 

recently acquired division. 



• CBS Records Inc. 
The phenomenal success of the group New 

Kids on the Block helped spark CBS Records 

to the best results in its history. Not only did 

the three New Kids albums sell almost 15 million 

units worldwide, the group's first two home

video releases sold more than one million units 

each in the United States-the first music 

home-video products to do so. 

An encouraging mix of superstars and new 

talent also contributed to these healthy results. 

Such established names as Billy Joel, Gloria 

Estefan, Michael Bolton, and The Rolling Stones 

RECORD BUSINESS SALES (Billion \0 

'90 

'89 

'88*- 39 

*Sales after the date of acquisition of CBS Records group 

Record division sales 
for the fiscal year ended 
March 31, 1990, rose 
33.8%, to ¥455 billion 
($2,900 million), and 
comprised 15.8% of 
consolidated net sales. 
During the year under 
review, both CBS Records 
Inc. and CBS/Sony Group 
Inc. in Japan registered 
robust sales, buoyed by 
a steady flow of hit 
albums. In addition, 
expansion of our CD 
software production in 
Japan and overseas has 
progressed smoothly. 

Walter R. Yetnikoff, 
President and CEO of 
CBS Records Inc. 
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delivered major hit albums, while such new

comers as Warrant, Indigo Girls, Martika, and 

Babyface made strong first impressions on the 

U.S. market. Internationally, the "lambada" 

dance craze brought the group Kaoma tremen

dous success in Europe and around the world. 

In addition, several Latin American subsidiaries 

of CBS Records International enjoyed exceptional 

sales despite difficult market conditions. 

The direct marketing "clubs" of the Columbia 

House division also enjoyed a best-ever year: 

the Compact Disc Club accounted for 60% of 

music-dub enrollments, while the Video Club, 



with distribution agreements with virtually 

every major film studio, continued to lead the 

U.S. market. During the year under review, 

CBS Records and Time Warner Inc. signed 

a contract-subject to receipt of appropriate 

government approvals-to create a joint venture 

to conduct direct marketing of music and 

home-video products worldwide. 

Pictured (from left) is just 
a smattering of recent hit 
CD and video releases by 
artists in the CBS Records 
group, such as Toshinobu 
Kubota; Living Color; New 
Kids on the Block; Billy 
Joel; Babyface; The Rolling 
Stones; and the Wiener 
Philharmoniker conducted 
by Carlos Kleiber. 

In a year that saw unprecedented sales growth 

in the market for music home-video products, 

CBS Music Video Enterprises emerged as the U.S. 

market leader, with artists as diverse as Neil 

Diamond, Pink Floyd, Michael Jackson, and 

Kate Bush all achieving significant chart success. 



Sony Classical G.m.b.H., of West Germany, 

has received perpetual worldwide marketing 

rights to 45 videos of performances by Maestro 

Herbert von Karajan, who passed away suddenly 

in July 1989. CSB/Sony Goup Inc. intends to 

launch the collection successively on laserdisc 

from September 1990. 

• CBS/Sony Group Inc. 

CBS/Sony Group earned solid sales gains, 

underpinned by a continuing flow of hit releases 

of Japanese and Western popular music. Among 

The platinum success of 
Gloria Estefan's album Cuts 
Both Ways on the Epic label 
was overshadowed by the 
back injury the singer 
sustained in a March 1990 
highway collision. Now 
recovering ahead of 
schedule, Estefan is expect
ed to resume recording and 
performing later in the year. 

The five-member female 
rock band, Princess 
Princess, of CBS/Sony 
Group had an extremely 
successful year, with its 
album Lovers and single 
Diamonds each selling over 
one million units. 
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Japanese artists, albums by Princess Princess 

and Toshinobu Kubota were major successes, 

each selling over one million copies. Video soft

ware also expanded substantially, supported by 

music videos of concert footage and animated 

cartoons. Additionally, in early 1990 we began 

producing laserdisc software in Japan. 

• CD Software Business 

In response to rising worldwide demand for 

CDs, Sony has been boosting the capabilities 

of its CD production facilities in Japan, the 

U.S., and Austria. Currently, we are capable 

of producing a combined output of over 300 

million units annually, a scale believed to be 

the largest in the world. In the future, we will 

continue to expand our record operations, with 

an emphasis on CDs. 



• New Management Team 

Columbia Pictures Entertainment, Inc. (CPE)'s 

new management team is led by Chairmen 

of the Board Peter Guber and Jon Peters. 

They have established a remarkable record of 

achievement in motion pictures, television, and 

music. In the past few years alone, they have 

co-produced such movies as Batman, Rain Man, 

and Tango and Cash. Guber and Peters have 

begun restructuring and rebuilding the Columbia 

family. They have revitalized the company's 

infrastructure, naming new chairmen for each 

motion picture studio and a head for the new 

Filmed Entertainment Group, establishing the 

cornerstone of the company and providing 

new leadership. 

• filmed l:ntertainment Group 

U.S. box office receipts broke the $5 billion mark 

for the first time ever in 1989 and continued 

at a record-breaking pace during the first 

quarter of this year. Strength at the box office 

was primarily due to the performance of block

buster pictures featuring top creative talent. 

Movie B . siness 

Movie business sales 
for the fiscal year ended 
March 31, 1990, totaled 
¥93 billion ($589 million), 
comprising 3.2% of 
consolidated net sales. 
Sony acquired Columbia 
Pictures Entertainment, 
Inc., and The Guber-Peters 
Entertainment Company 
on November 1, 1989, 
and November 7, 1989, 
respectively. The 
performances of these 
companies have been 
incorporated in Sony's 

. consolidated financial 
results for the year 
under review from the 
dates of purchase. 

Peter Guber (right) and 
Jon Peters, Chairmen of the 
Board of Columbia Pictures 
Entertainment, Inc. 

An important film scheduled 
for release later in 1990 is 
Columbia's adaptation of 
the bestselling novel, 
Postcards from the edge. 
Directed by Mike Nichols 
(Working Girl), Postcards 
from the edge features 
an all-star cast-including 
Meryl Streep, Shirley 
Maclaine, and Dennis 
Quaid-in a comedy that 
is by turns poignant and 
savagely funny. 
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The top 25 U.S. releases of 1989-about 5% of 

last year's 450 U.S. motion picture releases

generated nearly 50% of the record U.S. 

theatrical box office revenues. 

In this dynamic environment, CPE's new 

management team is establishing the founda

tion for consistent success at the box office. 

They are creating a powerful motion picture 

development process through the formation of 

productive long-term relationships with leading 

creative talent and aggressive acquisition and 

development of exciting scripts and concepts. 

CPE released four major films during the 

second half of last year. Tri-Star Pictures' Look 

Who's Talking and Steel Magnolias and Colum

bia Pictures' Ghostbusters II and When Harry 

Met Sally ... grossed an average of more than 

$1 00 million apiece in U.S. theaters. 

A sequel to Look Who's Talking is scheduled 

for release in 1991 and reprises the original 

stars, director, and producer. Look Who's Talking 

also has spawned a new Columbia Pictures 

Television (CPT) series, Baby Talk, scheduled to 

begin airing on ABC in fall 1990. 



In 1989, CPE recorded its best theatrical per

formance in years at theaters around the world 

on the strength of international hits, such as 

Tri-Star Pictures' See No Evil, Hear No Evil and 

Columbia Pictures' Ghostbusters II. Tri-Star's 

Look Who's Talking had an exceptionally strong 

theatrical opening outside the U.S. during the 

first quarter of 1990. 

The new management team is capitalizing 

on the increasing importance of the worldwide 

marketplace, entering a major international dis

tribution agreement with Orion Pictures Corp., 

which will commence in the latter half of 1990. 

The agreement, covering filmed entertainment 

Sa\\y 
Vffi(D 

CPE continues to lead 
the film industry with 
such popular and highly 
acclaimed movies as 
Look Who's Talking, an 
Amy Heckerling film; 
Steel Magnolias, directed 
by Herbert Ross; Glory, 
directed by Edward Zwick; 
and When Harry Met Sally. .. , 
a film by Rob Reiner. 

products for the next five years, calls for the 

distribution of Orion products through CPE's 

facilities worldwide. 

Columbia Pictures Television demonstrated 

its production and distribution strength during 

the year with hit series on all three major U.S. 

networks and Fox. CPT currently ranks among 

the industry leaders in production and distribu

tion of network prime time series, and continues 

its traditional strength in half-hour comedies, 

the most popular program format in U.S. 

off-network syndication. 



Merv Griffin Enterprises' two top game 

shows, Wheel of Fortune and Jeopardy!, are 

completing their fifth straight year of worldwide 

popularity and leadership in the first-run 

syndication marketplace. 

• l:xhibition 
CPE's exhibition business, Loews Theatre 

Management Corp., continued to expand its 

strong presence in the eastern half of the United 

States. Loews is building 73 new screens at 

eight sites, maintaining its strategy of building 

theaters in top demographic locations. Loews' 

theaters are strategically positioned in areas 

with high concentrations of moviegoers and 

opportunities for additional growth, enhancing 

its status as one of the premier exhibition 

circuits in North America. 

The Merv Griffin trademark 
encompasses some of the 
most original and success· 
ful programming in tele· 
vision. Merv Griffin 
Enterprises' Wheel of 
Fortune is the most popular 
game show in the world for 
the fifth consecutive year. 
Another Merv Griffin game 
show, Jeopardy!, continues 
to rank a strong second. 
The two shows have a 
weekly audience of over 
40 million viewers in the 
United States alone. 
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FINANCIAL REVIEW 

• Analysis of Operations 

Consolidated net sales for the fiscal year ended March 31, 

1990, recorded a dramatic 34.2% increase, to ¥2,~79.9 billion 

($18,343 million). This reflected sa,les growth in all ele~tronics 

product categories and across all geographic r~gions and in 

entertainment, which -.yas supported by a favorable· expansion 

in sales in the Record business and the addition of our Movie 

busin'ess through the acquisitions of Columbia Pictures 

Entertainment, Inc. (CPE), and The Gut;>er-Peters Entertainment 

Company (GPEC). 

In electronics, Video equipment sales· registered robust . 

growth across all markets ~nd rose 29. ~% over the previous 

year. The increase was led by extremely favorable growth in 

home-use products, n~tably 8mm video camcorders and 

VHS format VTRs, and soli9 sales gains in broadcast:. and 

professional-use· video equipment. Audio equipment sales ad

vanced 28.8%, due to exceptionally strong sales of CD players, 

particularly overseas. Sales in the Televisions category grew 

30.6%, as sales of color t~levisions expanded, centering on 

large-screen sets both in Japan and overseas, and sales of 

computer displays climbed sharply in all region~, especially in 

the United States. In the Other products category, although sales 

of semiconductors lost some of their previous vigor, steady 

sales, especially overseas, of information-related equipment, such 

as micro floppydisk systems and workstations and compon~nts 

led to an overall category sales increase of 27.6%. 

In ent~rtainment, ' the Record busin~ss registered a 

33.8% gain, buoyed by a continuing flow of hit albums and 

strong sales in all markets. Sales ·of CPE and GF?EC, both of 

which were purchased in November 1989, contributed a total · 
I ' ' 

of ¥92.5 billion ($589 million) to consolidated net sales during 

the period following a·cquisition. 

·Sales grew signifi~antly in all geographic regions-18.9% 

in Japan, 46.3% in the U.S., 43.7% in Europe, and 32.5% in l 

other overseas markets. Sales in Japan accounted for 30.2% 

of consolidated net sales, with overseas sales accounting 

for 69.8%, an increase of 3.9 percentage points over the . · 

previous y~ar. 

Factors underlying the rise in overseas sales during the year 

under review include an 11% weakening in the yen against the 

dollar, to an average of ¥142 compared with ¥127 the previous 

year, and a decline in the yen relative to other currencies. 

The increase in cost of sales during the term was held 

to 31.4%, despite a rise in consolida.ted net sal~s of 34.2%, 

and the ratio of cost of sales to net sales improved 1.5 

percenta'ge points, to 67.3%, from 68.8% the previous year. 

Behind this improvement were the. success of cost-cutting 

·measures in manufacturing,, particularly in electronics, and 

a decrease in the percentage of fixed costs along with the 

increase in net sales. 

N~T SAL~S BY PRODUCT GROUP (Billion ¥) 
' Movies 
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N~T SAL~S BY AR~A. (Billion ¥) 
Japan Other areas 

23.2% 15.4% 

1,555 
34.6% 27.9% 22.6% 14.9% 
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'86 1,452 

*Five-month fiscal period ended March 3 1, 1987 
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In the cost bf sales category, research and development 

expenditures increased 16.3,% from the previous year's 

, ¥142.1 ,billion to ¥165.2 billion· ($1 ,052 million). However, 

R&D expenses were 5. 7%, of net_ sales, down from 6.6% a 

year ago, due to the substantial advance in net sales. 

Additionally, the rise in selling, general and administrative 

expenses was held to 25.9°/9, and the ratio of these expenses 

to net sales declined to 24. 7%, .from the previous year's 

26.4%, an improvement of 1. 7 percentage points. 

Operating income posted an £3.9% increase over the 

previous year, to ¥295.2 billion ($1 ,880. million), reflecting the 

large gain in net sales and reductions of the ratios of cost of 

sales and selling, general and· adm.inistrative expenses to net 

sales. Consequently, the ratio of operating income to net sales 

climbed 2.8 percentage points, to 1 0.3%, from 7.5% a y~ar 

ago, due to an in<;:rease in profits from the electronics 

divisions and notably from the Record business. 
' ' 

Other income grew 52.5% over the previous 'year, to 

¥91.6 billion ($583 million). This advance was .attributable to 

an increase in working funds qnd to an increase in interest 

income from a rise in interest rates. 

Other expenses rose · 189.7%, to ¥159.3 billion ($1,015 

million). Major factors influencing this increase were interest 

payments on short-term loans used to finance the acquisition 

of CPE, a rise in interest payments due to such factors as 

higher short-term interest rates, and a foreign exchang~ loss. 

OPfRATING INCOMf (Billion ¥l 

Interest payn:ents were ¥70.9 billion ($451 million), up 117.8% 

over the previous year. Foreign exchange gains and losses 

arise primarily when there is a difference b~t~een the value 

of sales in foreign currencies converted to yen at prevailing 

exchange rates and the value at settlement of forward foreign 

exchange contracts used to hedge against exchange rate 

fluctuations. Since the yen depreciated against the dollar and 

other currencies during the year under review, the foreign 

exchange loss was equivalent to ¥39.7 billion ($253 million). 

Income before income taxes registered a strong 37.4°/o 

gain, to ¥227.4 billion ($1 ,449 million), ·for the year under 

review. Income taxes increased.33.4%, to ¥127.0 billion 

($809 million), and income taxes as a percentage of income 

before income taxes for. the term fell from 57.5% to 55.8%, 

a 1. 7 percentage point decrease. As a result, income fTQm 

consolidated .companies advanced 42.8%, to ¥100.5 billion 

($640 million). 

Net income, including equity in earnings of affiliated 

companies, totaled ¥102.8 billion ($655 million), advancing 

41.9% over the previous year. The ratio of net income to net 

sales increased. 0.2 percentage points, from 3.4% to 3.6%. 

Primary net income per Depositary Share (each Depositary 

Share represents one share of Common Stock) increased to · 

¥306.9 ($1.95), up from ¥241.7 for the previous year, and 

fully dilute~ net income per Depositary Share increased 

to ¥306.8 ($1.95), up from ¥2~0.8 for the previous year. 

·9o •~m~~~~~:::mm~~m!mmm•~om~ 29s 

'89 -----------· 160 
'88 --"-'--'-----... 61 

R&D fXPfNDITURfS AND PtRCfNT OF NfT SALfS (Billion ¥l 

'90 &iiiii!iiiJ~==I:::~::r~;It:::::z::::z::rc::::3:S::::Z::t::1 165 

'89 iiiiiiiiiiiU~==z:::!I~~==:r:t:=~=:J 
'88 iiiiiiiiiiiiiiii!!~::::::::=:r:.:::L2~ET::~~zn 

'87 *&iiiiiliiii~OC:::J 

'86 6ei!iiii']]fiC=~=====I::::J 
*Five-month fiscal period ended March 31, 1987 

26 



• financial Position and Liquidity 
At March 31, 1990, total assets of Sony and its consolidated 

subsidiaries were ¥4,370.1 billion ($27,835 million), up 

¥2,005.3 billion ($12,773 million), and representing a sub- . 

stantial 84.8% increase from the figure at March 31, 1989. 

This gain was due primarily to overall expansion of the opera

tions of the Sony group and the acquisition of CPE during 

the year under review. Other assets, centering on goodwill 

associated with the acquisitions,' increased ¥690.5 billion 

($4,398 million). 

Stockholders' equity was up a substantial 56.8%, to 

¥1 ,430.1 billion · ($9, 109 million), at March 31, 1990. This 

was ascribed to increases in common stock and additional 

paid-in capital stemming from the issuance of new Common 

Stock; the conversion of convertible bonds, and the exercise of 

warrants, coupled with a rise in net income. Reflecting the 

large increases in short- and long-term debt totaling ¥1 ,021.5 

billion ($6,506 'million) as funds for the acquisitions and 

investments and advances, the stockholders' equity ratio fell 

5.9 percentage points, from 38.6% to -32.7% : Stockholders' 

equity per Depositary Share was ¥4,308.33 ($27 .44), based 

on the number of shares outstanding at March 31, 1990. 

Among cash flows from investing activities, a total of 

¥550.7 billion ($3,508 million) was paid for the acquisitions, 

including the purchase of CPE. 

Total expenditures, including the addition of fixed assets, 

those temporarily invested in time deposits and short-term 

marketable securities from raised funds, and payments for 

investments and advances, amounted to ¥1,231.0 billion 

($7,841 million). lnflows ,amounted to ¥179.4 billion ($1,143 

million) and included collections of investments and advances, 

proceeds from the sale of short-term marketable securities and 

from tre sale of fixed assets. As a result, net cash used in 

investing activities amounted to ¥1 ,051.6 billion ($6,698 million). 

In cash flows from operating activities, depreciation 

and-amortization increased to ¥164.8 billion ($1,049 million), 

up . 31.0% over the previous year, reflecting recent vigorous 

capital investment. Included in this amount was the amortiza

tion of goodwill and intangible assets arising from the acqui

sitions of the CBS Records group and CPE. Net · cash provided 

by operating activities was ¥215.9 billion ($1 ,375 milljon) after 

additions and subtractions to net income of those items that 

charge or credit to income not requiring funds, such as 

depreciation and amortization, and those items that arise as 

a result of operations, such as increases in notes and accounts 

receivable and inventories. 

Among cash flows from financing activities, proceeds of 

¥1 ,028. 7 billion ($6,552 million) were obtained, chiefly from , 

the issuance of new Common Stock, bonds with warrants, 

and· convertible bonds and from increases in bank loans. ln. 

July 1989, 30 million shares of Common Stock were issued 

TOTAL ASSfTS AND STOCKHOLDfRS' fQUITY (Billion ':i) 
I Stockholders' equity 1 Total assets 

'90 •IEiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii~M=;:r:z::::!\l~:;::::::;~:;z:~~JZE:~!::J 4,370 
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in a, public offering in Japan. Net proceeds totaling ¥221.8 

billion ($1 ,413 million) were mainly appropriated for capital 

investments. In february 1990, ¥100 billion ($637 million) in 

unsecured bonds with warrants and ¥300 billion ($1 ,911 

million) in unsecured convertible bonds were issued in Japan. 

Net proceeds totaling ¥390.5 billion ($2,487 million) were 

appropriated to refinance the acquisitions of CPE and GPEC. 

It should be· noted that buyers for the public offerings of 

Common Stock, unsecured bonds with warrants, and converti~ 

ble bonds were not solicited in the Unit~d States, Canada, or 

among citizens of those countries. 

Additionally, after taking account of an increase in short

term borrowings associated with acquisitions and the subtrac

tion of outflows, net cash provided by financing activities 

amounted to ¥986.1 billion ($6,281 million). 

As a result of the activities outlined above, the net increase 

in cash and· cash equivalents, including the effect of ex

change rate changes, was ¥153.8 billion ($979 million), and 

cash and cash equivaients at the end of the year totaled 

¥451.7 billion ($2,877- million). 

(:apital investments for the year ended March 31, 1990, 

were increased 50.2% from the previous year's ¥215.6 billion, 

to ¥323.8 billion ($2,062 million). The increased expenditures 

were primarily used for expanding production facilities to 

meet rising demand for semiconductors; image-based devices, 

such as color picture tubes; magnetic products; and audio 

and video .equipment. 

• future Outlook 
The operating environment is expected to grow more 

unpredictable and warrant careful monitoring due to rising 

uncertainty regarding the world's economies and growing 

competition in the electronics industry. Amid these conditions, 

Sony will continue to develop attractive pro.ducts, strengthen 

overseas operations, improve productivity, and lower costs. for 

the fiscal year ending March 31, 1991, we are confident we 

will be successful in raising revenues further, and, by covering 

the interest and amortization expenses incurred through the 

purchase of CPE with profits earned by our electronics divi- , 

sions and Record business, we expect to be able to advaAce 

overall profits as well. 

We intend to maintain a high level of capital investment 

and expect expenditures to exceed the ¥323.8 billion ($2,062 

million) allocated during the year under review. Sony is stressing 

the further expansion of its overseas production facilities, evi

denced by its appropriation of approximately 30% to capital 

investment overseas. We anticipate this ratio to rise in the 

fiscal year ending March 31, 1991. 

In addition, as we believe R&D activities are vital to long

term growth in electronics, we will continue to fund these 

activities aggressively. 

NfT CASH PROVIDfD BY OPfRATING ACTIVITifS (Billion ¥) 

'90 216 

'89 ' 164 

'88 192 

'87 * 41 

'86 111 

CAPITAL INVfSTMfNTS (Billion ¥) 

'90 --------·------------ 324 '89 -------------- 216 

'88 --·-----· 134 '87 *·--· 58 

'86 ------· 105 *Five-month fiscal period ended March 31, 1987 
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SO\J'r C ORI'OII,\TIO\J 1\\JD 
CO:"\SOliD·\ll D Sl 'llSIDI ,\111['> 

QUARTERLY FINANCIAL AND STOCK INFORMATION 
(Unaudited) 

Year ended March 31 

Billions of yen except per share amounts 
' 

Millions of U.S. dollars 
except per share amounts 

1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter 
4th Quarter 

1989 1990 1989 1990 1989 1990 1989 1990 1990 
- -

Net sales .. ¥463.6 ¥571.8 ¥528.7 ¥656.7 ¥613.8 ¥870.6 ¥539.3 ¥780.8 $4,973.0 
Cost of sales 319.7 378.8 364.4 453.5 424.1 587.4 367.1 518.3 3,301.3 
Selling, general and 

administrative expenses . 122.8 147.0 132.8 165.9 147.7 ' 192.4 162.4 206.7 1,316.7 
Operating income . 30.6 60.0 42.9 54.2 55.1 106.0 31.8 74.9 477.4 
Interest income (expense)-net (4.1) (2.4) (2.4) (1.2) (1.9) (10.4) (1.5) (12. 7) (80.8) 
foreign exchange 

gain (loss)-net 3.9 (4.7) (7.0) (16.5) 5.8 (6.8) 2.2 (11.6) (73.8) 
Income before income taxes . .. 35.9 53.2 32.1 35.6 63.0 92.9 34.5 45.8 291.7 
Income taxes 20.3 30.2 19.5 10.0 34.7 52.2 20.7 34.5 219.9 
Net income. 16.1 23.2 13.1 25.9 28.9 41.9 14.4 11.9 75.7 

Net income per Depositary Share: 

Primary ¥ 57.2 ¥ 74.6 ¥ 43.7 ¥ 76.6 ¥ 94.4 ¥121.7 ¥ 46.9 ¥ 33.8 $ 0.22 
' fully di!uted . 55.2 74.6 --42.7 76.6 93.3 121.7 46.6 33.8 0.22 

Depreciation and 
amortization ¥ 25.8 ¥ 32.1 ¥ 27.6 ¥ 36.9 ¥ 33.6 ¥ 46.1 ¥ 38.8 ¥ 49.7 $ 316.4 

Capital investments 
(additions to fixed assets) 44.9 61.1 53.3 80.4 45.2 87.0 72.3 95.3 607.1 

R&D expenditures . 33.0 35.7 35.6 38.2 34.9 45.3 38.6 46.0 293.1 

Tokyo Stock Exchange price 
per share of Common Stock: 

High ¥5,700 ¥8,020 ¥7,260 ¥9,070 ¥7,290 ¥9,500 ¥7,570 ¥8,810 
Low · 5,010 6,550 5,090 7,550 5,660 8,080 6,610 6,880 

New York Stock Exchange price 
per American Deposita!)' Share: 

High $ 45 114 $ 55 7/s $ 54 1/4 $ 62 112 $58 11-. $ 65 3/4 $ 59 7/s $ 60 7/s 
Low , · 38 114 49 3/4 37 3

/. 53 3
/4 45 1/s 56 114 50 114 48 

Notes: 1. U.S. dollar amounts have been translated from yen, for convenience only, at the rate of ¥157 = U.S.$1, the approximate Tokyo foreign exchange market rate as of March 30, 

1990, as described in Note 2 of Notes to Consolidated financial Statements. 

2. Primary net. income per Depositary Share is computed based on the average number of common shares outstanding d~ring each period after consideration of the dilutive 

effect of common stock equivalents which include warrants and certain convertible bonds. Fully diluted net income per Depositary Share further assumes that all other 

convertible bonds and debentures were converted into common stock. 

3. On November 1, and November 7, 1989, Sony acquired Columbia Pictures Entertainment, Inc. and The Guber-Peters Entertainment Company. 

Sony's consolidated financial sta~ements include the operating res~lts ,of acquired companies for the period from the dates of acquisition. 
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SONY CORPORATION 1\ND 
CONSOLID1\TED SUBSIDIARIES 

FIVE-YEAR· SUMMARY Of ~ELECTED FINANCIAL .DATA 

, '(ear ended October 31 

1985 1986 ( Restated)' 

FOR THE FISCAl .PERIOD 
Net sales: 

Overseas . ¥1,054,274 ¥1,001 ,751 
Japan . 366,511 450,339 
Total 1,420,785 1,452,090 

Operating income . 133,684 42,144 
Income before income taxes . 141,911 84,128 

I nco me taxes '78,023 48,802 
Net income. 73,021 41,244 

Net income per Depositary Share: 

Primary i 316.0 178.4 
Fully diluted . 292.5 166.6 

Depreciation and 
amortization 72,025 86,029 

Capital investments 
(additions to fixed assets) 130,416 105,207 

R&D expenditures . 110,636 122,383 

AT FISCAl PERIOD-END 
Net working capital ¥ 3.18,6JO ¥ 359,405 
Stockholders' equity 599,163 600,059 
Stockholders' equity 

per Depositary Share. 2,592.12 2,595.13 

T ota'l assets . 1,447,261 1',532,919 

Average number of shares 
outstanding during the 
fiscal period 
(thousands of shares) 23(043 231 ,223 

Number of shares issued 
at fiscal period-end 
(thousands of shares) I 231,148 231,225 

Millions of yen 
except per share amounts 

Year ended March 31 

1987*, (Restated) 1988 (Restated) 1989 

' ·: 

¥ 397,494 ¥1,017,277 ¥1,414,032 
211,931 537,942 731,297 
609,425 1,555,219 2,145,329 

19,477 - 60,664 160,499 
25,626 71,836 165,516 
16,105 41,465 95,176 
13,254 37,23~ 72,469 

57.3 151.0 241.7 
54.2 145.7 240.8 

37,261 92,511 125,790 

58,150 134,049 215,613 
51,182 128,707 142,077 

¥ 347,935 ¥ 140,353 ¥ 348,476 
603,816 646,076 911,816 

2,611.25 2,705.86 3,226.49 
1,477,565 1,945,447 2,364,775 

231,236 249,600 303,941 

231,236 238,769 282,603 

' 1990 

¥2,010,378 
869,478 

2,879,856 

295,191 

227.429 
126,976 

102,~08 

306.9 
306.8 

164,751 

323,750 
165,227 

¥ 205r642 
1,430,058 

4,308.33 
4,370,085 

337,682 

331,929 

Thousands of 
U.S. dollars except 
per share amounts 

Year ended March 31, 
1990 

$12,804,955 
5,538,077 

18,343,032 

1,880,197 
1,448,592 

808,764 
654,828 

1.95 
1.95 

1,049,369 

2,062,102 
1,052,401 

$ 1,309,822 
9,108,650 

I 

27.44 
27,834,936 

Notes: 1. U.S. dollar amounts have been translated from yen, for convenience only, at the rate of ¥157 = U.S.$1, the approximate Tokyo foreign exchange market rate as of March 30, 

1990, as described in Note 2 of Notes to Consolidated financial Statements. 

2. Primary net income per Depositary Share is computed based on the average number of common shares outstanding during each period after consideration of the dllutive 

effect of common stock equivalents which include warrants and certain co~vertible bonds. Fully diluted net income per Depositary Share further assumes that all other 

convertible bonds and debentures were converted into common stock. 

3. Stockholders' equity per Depositary Share is based on the number of shares issued at fiscal period-end. 

. 

4. Commencing April · 1, 1988, Sony adopted the policy of consolidating its previously unconsolidated subsidiaries to comply with Statement of financial Accounting Standards 

No. 94. Financial data for the year ended October 31, 1986, for the five-month period ended March 31, 1987 and for the year ended March 31 , 1988 have been restated to 

comply with this new accounting standard. 

5. On January 5, 1988, Sony purchased CBS Inc.'s Records group and now holds 100% of the shares of CBS Records Inc., as well as the former joint venture CBS/Sony Group Inc. 

On November 1, and November 7, 1989, Sony acquired Columbia Pictures Entertainment, Inc. and The Guber-Peters Entertainment Company. 

Sony's consolidated financial statements include the operating results of acquired companies for the period from the dates of acquisition. 

* five-month fiscal period ended March 31, 1987. 

30 



SONY CORPORATION AND 
. CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES 

COMPOSITION OF NET SALES BY AREA AND PRODUCT GROUP 

Millions of yen 

Year ended October 31 Year ended March 31 

1985 1986 (Restated) 1987* (Restated) 1988 (Restated) 1989 1990 

Sales by Area 
Japan .':i 366,511 ' ':i 450,339 ¥211 ;931 ':i 537,942 ':i 731,297 ¥ 869,478 

25.8% 31.0% 34.8% 34.6% 34.1 °/~ 30.2% 

United States .. 477,559 435,214 164,523 434,473 586,278 857,812 

' 
, 33.6 30.0 27.0 27.9 27.3 29.8 

Europe . 249;123 . 315,045 146,441 351,262 497,842 ' 715,422 
17.5 21.7 24.0 22.6 23.2 24.8 

Other areas 327,592 251,492 86,530 231,542 329,912 437,144 
23.1 17.3 14.2 14.9 15.4 15.2 ' 

N~t sales . ¥1 ,420, 785 ¥1,452,090 ¥609,425 ¥1,555,219 ¥2,145.~29 ¥2,879,856 

Sales . by Product Group 
Video equipment . . ¥ 515,531 ':i 480,940 ¥188,712 ':i 451,064 ':i 573,493 ¥ 743,709 

36.3% 33.1% 30.9% ' 29.0% 26.7% 25.8% 

Audio equipment . 338,356 414,957 189,963 479,484 560,772 722,211 
23.8 28.6 31.2 30.8 26.2 25.1 

Televisions . 364,827 331,645 129,041 315,322 341,800 446,436 
25.7 22.8 21.2 20.3 15.9 15.5 

Other products 202,071 224,548 101,709 270,529 329,076 419,765 
14.2 15.5 16.7 17.4 15.3 14.6 

' 

Records , . 38,820 340,188 455.,226 

2.5 15.9 15.8 

Movies . 92,509 
' 

3.2 

Net sales . '¥1,420,785 ¥1 ,452,~90 ¥609,425 ¥1,555,219 ':i2, 145,329' ¥2,879,856 
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Thousands of 
U.S. dollars 

Year ended March 31, 
1990 

$ 5,538,077 

5,463,771 

4,556,828 

2,784,356 , 

$18,343,032 

$ 4,737,.000 

4,600,070 

I 

2,843,541 

2,673,663 

2,899,529 

589,229 
·, 

$18,343,032 



SONY C OIWORNION 1\ND 
CONSOLIDJ\rED SLIBSIDII\ RI['> 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

ASSfTS 

Millions of yen 

March 31 

1989 1990 

Current assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 4) .¥ 297,889 ¥ 451,668 
Time depo~its (Note 9) . 33,665 182,533 
Marketable securities (Note 7) . 91,115 54,784 
Notes and accounts 'receivable, trade (Note 6) 432,692 696,950 
Allowance for doubtful accounts and sales returns . (32,957) (46,560) 
Inventories (Note 5) . ~3,648 692,966 
Income tax prepayments . ' ' 51,408 57,637 
Prepaid expenses and 'other current assets 76,338 111,555 

Total current assets ,• 1,433,798 2,201,533 

Noncu~rent inventories-film (Notes 5 and 14) - 168,788 

Investments and advances: 
Affiliated companies (Note 6) 16,015 14,834 

Officers and employees . 2,445 2,315 

Sec'urity investments and other (Note 7) . 94,975 . 151,213 

113,435 .168,362 
·. I 

Property, plant and equipment (Notes 9 and 14): 
Land 86,964 114,002 

Buildings . 267,351 415,835 
Machinery and equipment . 726,564 908,646 

Construction in progress 24,611 90,6~3 

1,105,490 1,529,176 

Less-Accumulated depreciation 560,714 661,048 

544,776 868,128 

Other assets (Notes 3 and 8): 
Intangibles -· ' • 141,779 168,748 
Goodwill 59,168 629,401 
Other . 71,819 165,125 

272,766 963,274 

¥2,36;4,775 ¥4,370,085 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements. 
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$ 

Thousands of 
U.S. dollars 

(Note 2) 

March 31, 
1990 

2,876,866 
1,162,631 

348,943 
4,439,172 

(296,561) 
4,413,796 

367,115 
710,541 

14,022,503 

1,075,083 

94,484 
14,745 

963,140 
' 

1,072,369 

726,127 
2,648,631 
5,787,554 

577,663 

9,739,975 
4,210,497 

5,529,478 

1,074,828 
4,008,923 
1,051,752 

6,135,503 

$27,834,936 



LIABIL/TifS AND STOCKHOLDfRS' fQUITY 

Current liabilities: 
Short-term borrowings (Note 9) 
Current portion of long-terrh debt (Notes 9 and 14) 
Notes and accoun~s payable, trade (Note 6) . 
Notes payable, construction 

Dividends payable 

Accrued income and other taxes 

Other accounts payable and accrued 'liabilities 

Total current liabilities 

Long-term liabilities: 
Long-term debt (Notes 9 and 14). 
Accrued pension and severance costs (Note 1 0) 
Deferred income taxes . ' 
Other< long-term liabilities ,. 

Minority inter~st in consolidated subsidiary companies . 

Stockholders' equity (Note 12): 
Common stock; ¥50 par value-

Authorized -920,000,000 shares 

Issued: 1989-282,602,923 shares 

1990-331,928,730 shares 

Additional paid-in capital 

Legal' rese!Ve . . , 

Retained earnings appropriated for special allowances . 

Retained earnings 

Cumulative translation adjustment 

' 

Commitments and contingent liabilities (Note 1 ?) 

" 
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Millions of yen 

March .31 

1989 1990 

¥ 224,637 ¥ 75'7,017 
12,797 76,715 

468,784 580,932 
21,323 27,375 

6,461 8,770 
84,752 112,664 

266,568 ' 432,418 

1,085,322 1,995,891 

220,790 645,~69 

61,319 70,949 
36,928 46,493 
33,699 163,846 

352,736 927,257 

14,901 16,879 

114,641 
\ 

278,038 
232,050 419,417 

10,535 13,566 
16,313 20,547 

600,184 674,962 
(61 ,907) 23,528 

911,816 1,430,058 

¥2,364,775 ¥4,370,085 

' 

$ 

Thousands of 
U.S. dollars 

(Note 2)' 

March 3·1, 
1990 

4,821,764 
488,631 

3,700,204 
174)63 

55,860 
717,605 

2,754,254 

12,712,681 

4,114,452 
451,904 ' 
296,134 

1,043,605 

5,906,095 

107,510 

1,770,943 
2,671,446 

86,408 
1JQ,872 

4,299,121 

14~.860 

9,108,650 

I $27,834,936 



SONY CORPORATION i\ND 
CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDii\RI[S 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND RETAINED ·EARNINGS 

Millions of yen 

Year ended March 31 

1988 1989 1990 

Sales and operating rE(venue: 

Net sales-

Overseas . '¥1,017,277 '¥1 ,414,032 ¥2,010,378 
Japan 537,942 731,297 869,478 

1,555,219 2,145,329 2,879,856 
Operating revenue 32,742 56,143 65,386 

1,587,961 2,201,472 2,945,242 

Costs and expenses: 

Cost of sales (Note 13) . 1,147,014 1,475,352 1,938,016 

Selling, general and administrative . 380,283 565,6,21 712,035 

1,527,297 2,040 ~973 2,650,051 

Operating income . . ' . " 60,664 160,499 295,191 

Other income: 

Interest and dividends 15,448 22,609 44,190 
Foreign exchange gain, net . 13,850 4,818 -
Other 27,849 32,591 47,363 

I 

57,147 60,018 91,553 

Other expenses: 

Interest 27,195 32,550 70,883 
Foreign exchange loss, net . - - 39,724 

Other 18,780 22,451 48,708 

45,975 55,001 159,315 

lm:ome before income taxes 71,836 165,516 227,429 

Income taxes (Note 11 ): 

Current 37,120 91,129 128,017 

Deferred •' 4,345 4,047 (1 ,041) 

41,465 95,176 126,976 

Income from consolidated companies '· 30,371 70,340 100,453 

Equity i'n earnings of affiliated companies (Note 6) 6,865 2,129 2,355 

Net income 37,236 72,469 102,808 

Retained earnings: 

Balance, beginning of year . 523,471 547,271 600,184 

Common stock issue costs, net of tax (2,033) (4,301) 
I 

-

Cash dividends (1 0,555) (12,408) (16,464) 

Transfer to legal reserve . (1,547) (1 ,913) (3,031) 
Appropriation for special allowances, net of taxes (1,334) (3,202) (4,234) 

B~lance, end of year .'¥ 547,271 '¥ 600,184 ¥ 674,962 

Yen 

Net income per common share: .. 
Primary . '¥ 151 .0 '¥ 241.7 ¥ 306.9 

Fully diluted 145.7 240.8 306.8 
Cash dividends per com,mon share 44.6 44.6 50.0 

The accompanying notes are an .integral part of these statements. 
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Thousands of 
U.S. dollars 

(Note 2) 

Year 
ended March 31, 

1990 

$12,804,95~ 

$ 

$ 

5,538,077 

18,343,0~2 . 

416,471 

18,759,503 

12,344,051 

4,535,255 

16,879,306 

1,880,197 

281,465 

-
301,675 

583,140 

451,484 

253,019 

310,242 

1,014,745 

1,448,592 

815,395 

(6,631) 

808,764 

639,828 

15,000 . 

654,828 

3,822,828 

(27,395) 

(104,866) 

(19,306) 

(26,968) 

4,299,121 

U.S. dollars 
(Note 2) 

1.95 

1.95 

0.32 



SOW CORPORI\TION 1\ND 
CONSOLIDi\TED SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

Millions of yen 

' .. 
Year ended March 31 

1988 1989 1990 
- .---

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Net income '· ¥ 37,236 ¥ 72,469 ¥ 102,808 

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided 
J 

by operating activities-

Depreciation and amortization . ' . 92,511 125,790 164,751 

Equity. in earnings of affiliated companies, less dividends (3,417) (1,582) 1,511 

Exchange (gain) loss (1,059) 1,869 8,778 

Accrual for pension and severance costs, less payments . 2,345 5,178 I 9,878 

Loss on disposal of fixed assets . 3,650 4,093 10,837 

Deferre9 income taxes .. 4,345 4,047 (1 ,041) 

Changes in' assets and liabilities net of effects from acquisitions: · 

Increase in notes and accounts receivable (27,954) (67,296) (104,248) 

Increase in inventories (31 ,673) (119, 145) (109,951) 

Increase in other current assets (12,273) (16,508) (20,505) 

Increase in notes and accounts. payable 64,547 84,565 108,604 

Increase in accrued income and other taxes . 12,616 33,012 18,755 

Increase in other current liabilities . 45,918 34,6~ 5 33,438 

Other 5,343 2,940 (7,7J4) 

Net cash provided by operating activities 192,135 164,047 215,881 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Payments for purcha.ses of fixed assets (135,504) (182,324) (325,979) 

Proceeds from sales of fixed assets 10,725 7,999 9,485 

Payments for investments and advances (7,962) (14,707) (129,491) 

Proceeds from sales of investment securities and collections of advances 5,090 4,319 83,961 

Payments for purchases of marketable securities . (162,602) (268,439) (53,720) ' 

Proceeds from sales of marketable securities ·. 181,564 224,178 85,944 

(Increase) decrease in time deposits (11 ,437) 40,639 (143, 109) 

Payments for acquisitions in 1988 and 1990, net. of cash acquired of 
¥25,259 million and ¥11,404 million ($72,637 thousand), respectively. (221 ,676) - (550,721) 

Other . , 7,814 (1 ,573) (27,971) 

Net cash. used in investing activities (333,988) (189,908) (1 ,051 ,601) 

Cash ~lows fro~ financing activities: 
Proceeds from issuance of long-term qebt 86,631 109,881 . · 427,888 

Proceeds from issuance of common stock warrants . - - 23,600 

Proceeds from issuance of common stock, net of stock issue costs - 120,819 237,025 

Payments of long-term debt . (5,082) (7,471) (4,217) 

lncre.ase (decrease) in short-term borrowings . 107,224 (95,728) 340,197 

Dividends PC!id . ' . (9,476) (11 ,339) (14, 155) 

Other - . , . . 8,126 (6,881) (24,224) 

Net cash provided by financing activities 187,423 109,281 9&6,114 

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (2,556) (405) 3,385 

Net increase in cash and ca~h equivalents 43,014 83,015 153,779 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year . 171,860 214,874 297,889 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year . ¥214,874 ¥297,889 ¥ 451,668 

" 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements. 
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I 

' 

Thousands of 
u.s. dolla rs 

(Note 2) 

Year 
ended March 31, 

1990 

$ 654,828 

1,049~369 

9,624 

55,911 

.. 62,917 

69,025 

:(6,631) 

(66-;l,OOO) 

(700,324) 

(130,605) 

691,745 

119,459 

212,981 

(49,261) 

' ' 
1,37.5,0'38 

(2,076,299) 

60,414 

(824,784) 

534,783 . 

(342, 166) 

547,414 

(911 ,522) 

(3,507,777) 

(178, 159) 

(6,698,096) 

2,725,401 

150,318 

1,509,714 

(26,860) 

2,166,860 

(90,159) 

(154,293) 

6,280,981 

21 ,5()1 

979,484 

1,897,382 

$2,876,866 



SONY CORPORATION 1\ND 
CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1. Summary of significant accounting policies 
The parent company and its Japanese subsidiaries maintain their 

records and prepare their financial statements in accordance with 

accounting principles generally accepted in Japan, and its foreign 

subsidiaries in conformity with those of the countries of their domicile. 

Certain adjustments and reclassifications, including those relating to 

the tax effects of timing differences, capitalization of stock purchase 

warrants, the appropriation for or reversal of special allowances, the 

accrual of certain expenses and the accounting for foreign currency 

translation, have been incorporated in the accompanying financial 

statements to conform with accounting principles generally accepted 

in the United States of America. These adjustments were not recorded 

in the statutory books of account. 

Significant accounting policies, after reflecting adjustments for the 

above, are as follows: 

Basis of consolidation and accounting 

for investments in affiliated companies 

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the 

parent company and, with minor exceptions, those of its majority

owned subsidiary companies. All significant intercompany transactions 

and accounts are eliminated. Investments in 20% to 50% owned 

companies are stated, with minor exceptions, at cost plus equity in 

undistributed earnings; consolidated net income includes the company's 

equity in current earnings of such companies, after elimination of 

unrealized intercompany profits. 

The excess of the cost over the underlying net equity of investments 

in consolidated subsidiaries and affiliated companies accounted 

for on an equity basis is allocated to identifiable assets based on 

fair market value at the date of acquisition. The unassigned · residual 

value, which is recognized as goodwill, is amortized on a straight

line basis principally over a 40-year period, with the exception of minor 

amounts which are charged to income in the year of acquisition. 

Translation of foreign currencies 

All asset and liability accounts of foreign subsidiaries and affiliates 

are translated into Japanese yen at appropriate year-end current rates 

and all income and expense accounts are translated at rates prevailing 

at the time of the transactions. The resulting translation adjustments 

are accumulated as a component of stockholders' equity. 

Foreign currency receivables and payables are translated at 

appropriate year-end current rates and the resulting translation gains 

or losses are taken into income currently. 

Revenue recognition 

Revenues from sales are generally recognized by the company 

when products are shipped to customers. 

Motion picture revenue is recognized on the date of theatrical 

exhibition. Revenue from television licensing agreements is recognized 

when the motion picture or television series first becomes available 
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for telecast. Revenue from home videocassette licensing is generally 

recognized on the date of shipment. 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents include all highly liquid investments, 

generally with original maturities of three months or less, that are 

readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are so near maturity 

that they present insignificant risk of changes in value because of 

changes in interest rates. 

Marketable securities and security investments 

Marketable equity securities inclu~ed in marketable securities 

(current) are stated at the lower of cost or market in the aggregate 

as are those marketable equity securities included in security invest

ments and other (noncurrent); other marketable securities (current), 

principally bank debentures, and other security investments 

(noncurrent) are stated at cost or less. 

The cost of marketable equity securities sold is based on the average 

cost of all the shares of each security held at the time of sale. 

Inventories 

Inventories in electronics and record business are valued at cost, 

not in excess of market, cost being determined on the "average" basis 

except for the cost of finished products carried by certain subsidiary 

companies which is determined on the "first-in, first-out" basis. 

Film costs include production, print, certain advertising costs and 

allocated overhead. Liabilities for profit participation are accrued and 

also included in inventory in the proportion that revenue for a period 

relates to estimated ultimate revenues. Film costs are amortized in 

the proportion that revenue for a period relates to management's 

estimate of ultimate revenues. Unamortized film costs are compared 

with estimated net realizable value on an individual film basis and 

writedowns are recorded when indicated. Film costs for motion pictures 

and television programs that are expected to be amortized against 

revenues from primary markets are classified as current assets. 

Primary markets for motion pictures include theatrical, home video

cassette and pay television. Primary markets for television programs 

include network and first-run syndication. All other film costs are 

classified as noncurrent. 

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation 

Property, plant and· equipment is stated 9t cost. Depreciation of 

property, plant and equipment is computed primarily on the declining 

balance method for the parent company and Japanese subsidiary 

companies and on the straight-line method for foreign subsidiary 

companies at rates based on estimated useful lives of the assets 

according to general class, type of construction and use. Significant 

renewals and additions are capitalized at cost. Maintenance and 

repairs and minor renewals and betterments are charged to income 

as incurred. 



Pension and severance. plans 

On terminating employment, employees of the parent company 

and subsidiaries in Japan are entitled, under most circumstances, 

to lump-sum indemnities or pension payments as described below, 

based on current rate of .pay and length of seNice. Under normal 

circymstances, the minimum payment prior to retirement age is an 

amount based on voluntary retirement. Employees receive significant 

additional benefits on involuntary retirement including retirement at 

age limit. With respect to directors' resignations, lump-sum severance 

ind.emnities calculated by using a' similar formula are 'normally paid 

subject to approval of t~e stock.holders. 

The parent company and IT)Ost subsidiaries in Japan have ·non

contributory funded pension pla~s with a trust bank and two insurance 

companies. The defined benefits under the plans cover 60% of the 

indemnities under· the existing regulations to employees retiring in ~ 

voluntarily after 20 years or more of seNice and an additional amo!Jnt 

applicable to retirees due· to age limit which is based principally on 

" length of SeNice. The benefits are payable, at the option of the' 

retiring employee,, as a monthly pension or in a lump-sum amount. 

Most foreign subsidiaries have defin'ed benefit p'ension plans ~r 
severance indemnity plans covering substantially 'all of their employees 

under which the cost of benefits is currently fun~ed or accrued. 

The benefits for these plans are based primarily on. current rate 

of pay and length of service. 

·. Prior to April 1, 1989, ttl~ recorded liability for employees' severance 

indemnities plus the retir~~ent funds, excluding those funds co~ering 
the additional benefits, were sufficient to state the companies' 

maximu111 liability for employee se~ice to the balance sheet date. 

Effective April 1, 1'989, the company adopted Statement of Financial 

Acwunting Standards No. 87 (FAS 87), Employers'. Accounting for 

Pensions. As of that date, the sum of combined plan assets and un

funded ~ccrued pension and ·severance cos.ts exceeded the projected 

benefiLobligatibn ?Y ¥8,231 million ($52,427 thousand) which is 

.being amortized and recognized in income by reducing annual pens.ion 

and severance costs, principally over' a 16.5-year period for Japane~e 
plans and an 11.0-to-26.0-year period for foreign plans. ·The effect of 

this change on net income for the fiscal year ended March 31, 1990 

was insignificant. 

Income taxes and retai~ed earnings appropriated 

for spec~al allowances 

The pa<rent company, subsidiaries in Japan and some of the foreign 

supsidiaries .are permitted to deduct for income tax purposes, if 

recorded on the books as appropriations of retained earnings or as 

charges t9 income, cer~ajn special allowances which are not required 

for'financial a'ccounting PL!rposes. Since the effect of the special 

allowances is a deferral of income taxes, an amount equivalent to 
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the current tax reduction resulting from recording of the special 

allowances is provided as "Deferred income taxes;' and the remaining 

portion of such allowances is set forth in the accompanying financial 

statements as "Retained earnings appropriated for special allowan~es:' 

In December 1987, the financial Accounting Standards Board 

issued Statement of financial Accounting Stan~ards No. 96 (FAS 96) ; 

Accounting for Income Taxes, which require~ an asset, and liability 

approach in the measurement of deferred taxes and restricts the 

recognition of deferred tax debits (assets). t1owever, the effective 

date was deferred, in the case of the company, until the year ending 

March 31 , 1993 by FAS 103 which a~ended FAS 96. If FAS 96 had 

been implemented as at March 31, 1990, deferred tax debits (assets) 

and retained earnings as at March 31, 1990 would probably decrease. 

Net income per share 

Primary net income per common share is computed based on the 

average number of common shares outstanding during ·each period 

after consideration of the dilutive effect of common stock. equivalents 

which include warrants and certain convertible bonds. Fully diluted 

net income per common, share further, assumes that' all othe~ co~ertible 
bonds and debentures were converted into common·stock. The dilutive 

effect of warrants is determined ,using the treasury stock method. 

Both primary and fully diluted net income per common share are 

appropriately adjusted for the free share distribution of common stock. 

Distributions of common stock' 

. On occasion, the company may make a free distribution of con:mon 

stock which is accounted for either by a transfer of the· ~pplicable 

par value fro~ the additional paid-in capital to the common stock 

account or with no entry if free shares are .distributed ·from , the 

portion of previously iss'ued shares acco~nted for as excess of par 

value in the common stock account. The free share distribution is 

made in accordance with the provisions of the Commercial Code 

of Japan, and such action is approved. by the Board of Directors. 

In Japan, a gratis distribution as' described above is clearly distin

guished from a "stock dividend" ' paid out of profits which, under 

the Commercial Code, rnust ,~be approved by the stockholders . . 

· Common stock issue costs 

Common stock issue costs are directly charged to retained earnings, 

net of tax, in the accompanying financial ~tatements as the Japanese 

Commercial Code prohibits charging such stock issue costs to capi

tal accounts which is the prevailing practice in th~ United States of 

America : On the books, such issue costs are .charged to expense. 

Reclassifications 

Certain accounts in the balance sheet as of March 31, 1.989 have . 

been reclassified to wnform to the 1990 presentation. 



2 .. US. dollar amounts 
U.S. dollar amounts are included solely for convenience. These 

translations should not b~ construed as representations that the yen 

amounts actually represent, or have been or could be converted into, 

U.S. dollars. As the amounts shown in U.S. dollars are for convenience 

3. Acquisitions 
On Janua,Y 5, 1988, the company acquired ,from CBS Inc. all of 

the outstanding common stock of CBS Records Inc. and its affiliates, 

'which are operati-ng primar.ily in the record business, for approximately 

U.S.$2 billion in cash. The purchase agreement provides for an addi

tional payment in the form of a dividend to CBS Inc. from the acquired 

company b'ased on its net worth at the acquisition date. The amount 

of the a9ditional payment is still subje~t to the determination of 

net worth. · 

On June 22, 1989, the company acquired all assets and liabilities 

of Trans Com Systems Division of Sundstrand Corporation (Trans 

Com) for approximately U.S.$60 mfllion. Trans Com is eng.aged in 

designing, manufacturing and installing inflight AV entertainment 

systems in commercial aircraft worldwide. 

On September 19·, 1989,· the company acquired all of the out

standing shares of common s'tock of Materials Research Corporation 

(MRC) and its affiliates for approximately U.S.$58 million. MRC is a 

manufacturer and supplier of sputtering and etching equipment, , 

high-purity metals, and ceramics. 

'In November 1989, the' company acquired all of th~ outstanding 

shares of comm0n stock of Columbia Pictures Entertainment, Inc. 

(CPE) and The Guber-Peters Enter,tainment Company (GPEC), which 

are operating primarily in the, film business, for approximately 

U.S.$3.4 billion and U.S:$0.2 billion, respectively. 

All of the acquisitions were accounted for as purchases and the 

company's consolidated financial statements include operating results 

Of the acquired companies for the periods from the dates of acquisi

tion. The excess of the purchase price over the net assets acquired 

has been allocated to identifiable assets such as inventories, land, 

Net sales . 

Net income 

Net income per common share

Primary. 

fully diluted 

The pro forma results of operations are not necessarily indicative 

of the actual results of operations that would have occurred had the 
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only, the rate of ¥157 = U.S.$1, the approximate current ra'te at 

March 30, 1990, _has been used for the purpose of presentation of 

the U.S. dollar amounts in the accompanying financial statements. 

property, piant. and equipment and intangible assets (primarily artist 

contracts and music catalogues), based upon, the estimated fair 

value of such assets. The excess of the acquisition costs over the 

amounts preliminarily assigned to identifiable assets less liabilities 

assumed is recognized as goodwill. 

Property, plant and equipment and various int<;mgible assets, after 

the above allocations, are d~preciated or ~mortized based on estimated 

useful lives. In the case of artist con~racts a,nd music catalogues, , 

the amounts are amortized on a straight-line basis principally .over 

16 years and 21 years, respectively. Goodwill is being amortized on 

a straight-line basis principally over a 40-year period. 

In conjunction with the acquisition of GPEC, Warner Bros. Inc. 

(Warner) raised a dispute regarding Guber-Peters' contractual com

mitment to W,arner. A s~ttlement was made among Warner, Sony 

USA Inc. and GPEC on November 16, 1989:. By this settlement, all 

litigation relating to Guber's and. Peters' acceptance of Sony's offer of 

employment has been dismissed. The settlement includes a number 

of joint business arrangements. Among other arrangements, CPE 

transferred to Warner its 35°/o interest in .the Burbank Studio, and 

CPE acquired the Lorimar Studio in Culver City, California from 

Warner. In addition, Warner will acquire a 50% interest in Columbia 
. . ' 

House, a division of CBS Records Inc. and a direct marketer of 
' ' ' 

records, tapes and vide~cassettes in the United States. 

The following unaudited consolidated pro forma information shqws 

results of the company's consolidated operations .for the years ended 

March 31, 1989 and 1990 as though the purchases of the acquired 

compa~ies had been made as of the beginning of each year presented. 

1989 

Yen in 
millions 

Year 
ended March 31 

' 

1990 

¥2,375,813 ¥3,078,643 
42,029 

¥141.6 

141.6 

Yen 

89,547 

¥267.6 
267.5 

Dollars in 
thousands 

Year 
ended March 31, 

1990 

$19,609,191 
570,363 

U.S. dollars 

$1.70 
1.70 

purchase been consummated at the beginning of the respective years, 

or of results which may occur in the future. 



4. C~sh flow information 
· Cash payments fqr income taxes were ¥26,576 million, 

¥46,091 million and ¥107,369 million ($683,879 thousand) for 

the years ended March 31, 1988, 1989 and 1990, respectively; in 

th'ese respective periods, inter~st payments were ¥26,511 million, 

¥32,192 million and ¥73,629 million ($468,975 thousand). 

.Capital lease o~ligations of ¥1,177 million, ¥1 ,315 million and 

¥2,977 million ($18,962_ .thousand) were incurred during the years 

en qed 'March 31 , 1988, 1. 989 and 1990, respectively. ' · 

5. lrJVentories 
ln'-:'entories at March 31, 1989 and 1990 comprise the ~allowing: 

I ; 

Current: 

Finished products · 

Work · in process ' . 
Raw materials, purchased components and supplies 

film-

"{heatrical-releas~d . ' . , .. 
Television-released . . 

.. 

Noncurrent: 

film-

Theatric.al-released 

-in pr·ocess 

Television-released 

-in proce?S . ' .. 
I I 

\ 
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I'' 

Conversions of convertible debt into common stock and additional 

paid-in c"pital. were ¥29,639 million, ¥80,349 million and ¥85,838 
million ($546, 739 thousand) for the years ended March 31, 1988, 

1989 and 1990, r~spectively. 

In connection with the acquisitions consummated in the years ended 

March 31, 1988 and 1990, the company assumed liabilities of 

¥90,975 million and ¥435,041 million ($2, 770,962 ~housand), 

respectiv~ly. 

Yen in 
millions 

March 31 

1989 . 1990 

¥317,902 '¥442,543 
87,851 110,192 
77,895 93,909 

- 34,661 
- 11,661 

¥483,648 ¥692,966 

I 

¥ - '¥ 69,665 
- 23,508 
- 46,119 

, _ 29,496 

¥ - ¥168~788 

•' 

.. 

' Dollars in 
thousands 

,, 
March 31, 

1990 

$2,818,745 
-701,860 

598,146. 

220,771 

7~.274 

$4,413,796 

I 

$ 443,726 
149,732 
293,752 
187,873 

$r,o75,083 

'. 



6. Investments in and transact.ions with affiliated companies 
The following summarized financial information, before intercol"!lpany basis prior to Ap,ril 1, 1988 and which have been consolidated 

eliminations, is for subsidiaries which were accounted for on an equity in accordance with FAS 94 since that date. 

,£ 

Current assets 

Property, plant and equipment 

Other assets 
I 

Total assets . 

Current liabilities 

Long-terr.n liabilities 
~ 

Stockholders' equity 

T o~al liabilities and stockholders' equity . 

Number of companies at end of year 

. ~ 

1988 
I 

Net sales ¥319,140 
Gross profit 40,018 
Net' income .. 2,982 

Yen in 
millions 

March 31 

1989 1~90 

.¥150,262 ¥236,672 
33,800 44,275 
53,758 72,647 

'¥237,820 ¥353,594 

¥138,688 ¥194,236 
48,719 80,040 
50,413 79,318 

'¥237,820 ¥353,594 

21 21 

Yen in 
millions 

' 
Year 

ended March 31 

1989 1990 

¥'438,643 ¥625,248 
49,699 67,607 

7,980 16,106 

Summarized financial informati0n for affiliated companies accounted for by the equity meH1od is as shown below: 

Current assets 

Property, plant and · ~quipment 

Other assets . 

Total ass.ets ,. ,. · 

Current liabilities 

Long-term liabilities . · ' 
Stockholders' equity . 

Total liabilitie$ and· stockholders' equity 

Number of companies at end ofyear .. 

1988 

Net sales '¥160,688 
Gross profit •. 53,534 
Net income 11,748 
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Yen in 
millions 

March 31 

1989 

¥4;3,837 
8,026 
2,162 

'¥54,025 

'¥17,405 
857 

35,763 

'¥54,025 

Yen in 
millions 

Year 
ended March 31 

1989 

4 

1990. 

¥48,248 
9,395 
2,563 

¥60,206 

¥17,346 

980 
41,880 

¥60,206 

3 

1990 - - ---
¥91,033 . ¥115,064 

27,473 32,835 
5,604 7,019 

Dollars in 
thousands 

March 31, 
1990 

$1 ,'507 ,465 
282,006 
462,720 

$2,252,1,91 

$1,237,172 
509,809 
505,210 

$2,252,191 

Dollars in 
thousands 

Year 
ended March 31 , 

1990 

$3,98'2,471 

\ 

430,618 
102,586 

Dollars in 
thousands· 

March 31, 
1990 

$307,312 
59,841 
16,325 

$383,478 

$110,484 
6,242 

266,752 

$383,478 

Dollars in 
thousan·ds 

Year 
ended March 31, 

1990 

$732,892 
209,140 

44,707 



Account balances and transactions with affiliated companies which . are accounted for by the equity ~ethod ' are presented below: 

A~counts receivable, trade 

Accounts payable, trade .. , 

Sales 

Purchases 

7. Marketable securities 
The cost and market .value of marketable equity ~ecurities included 

' in marketable securities (current) ~nd security investments and oth.er 

' . 

·current: 

Cost 
•' 

Market . ~ 
Nor:tcurrent: 

; 

Cost '• '• 

'Mar.ket 

; 

1988 

¥51.191 I 
6,391 

Yen in 
millions 

March 31 

1989 1990 
------;-

¥6,322 ¥3,931 
315 323 

Yen in 
millions 

Year 
ended March 31 

1989 1990 

.-M.os~ I· ¥54,790 
3,658 3,954 

Dollars in 
thousands 

March 31, 
1990 

$25,038 , 
2,057 

Dollars in 
thousands 

Year 
ended March 31 ,' 

1990 

$348,9'81 
25,185 

(noncurrent) at March 31, 1989 and 1990 comprise th~ following: 

¥ 

¥ 

: 

I 

Yen in 
millions 

March 31 

1989 

9,695 ¥ 
11 ,067' 

34,957. ¥ 
183,749 

1990 

: 

8,070 $ 
•7,780 

44,702 $ 
181,396 ' 

Dollars in 
thousands 

Mardi 31, 
1990 

~1 ,401 
49,554 

284,726 

1, 1?5,;388 

At March 31 , 1990, gross unrealized gains and losses pe.rtajning to marketab,le equity seturities in the portfol,io are as follows: 

Current 

Noncurrent . 

Net realizeq gains on the disposal of marketable equity securities 

for the year~ .ended March 31, 1988, 1989 and 1990 were ¥1,750 

million, ¥3,051 million and ¥8,375 million ($53,344 thousand), 

respectively. 

8. Accumulated amortization of good~ill and intangibles. 
, Accumulated amortization 'of goodwill and intangibles amounted 

to ¥24,239 ·million and ¥47,454 million ($302,255 thousand) at 
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¥ 

Gains 

Yen 'in 
millions 

1,252 
139,988 

Losses 
---

¥1,542 
3,294 

$ 

Gains 

Dollars in 
thousands 

7:975 $ 
89·1,643 

Losses 

9,822 
20,981 

The cost of marketable securities other than equity ' securities 

at March 31, 1989 and 1990 approximated market. 

March 31 , 1989 a'nd 1990, respectively. 



9. Short-term· borrowirgs and long-term debt 
Short-term borrowings at March 31, 1990 comprise the following: 

Loaris, principally from banks, with interest ranging from 5. 7So/o to 18.55% per annum 

Commercial paper wi~h inter~st ranging from 7.90% to 10.13% per· annum 

Lot;lg-term debt at March 31, 1990 comprises the ·followif')g: 

Unsecured loans, representing obligations principally to banks, due 1990 to 2004 
with inte'rest ranging from ~(Oo/o to 16.0% per annum . 

Unsecured 6.0% convertible · debentures. of U.S.$1 ,850 thousand due 1997, convertible currently at 
¥3,520.~ ($13. 73 calculated . at ¥256.30 = $1) for one common sh~re, redeemable before due date . 

Unsecured 2.0% convertible bonds due 2000, convertible currently at ¥4,575.9 ($29.15) 
for one. common share, redeemable before due date . . 

Unsecured 1.5ofo convertible bonds ·due 2002, cdnver~ible currently at ¥4,826.7 ($30.74) 
for one 'common share, redeemable before due dat~ · · .. 

Unsecured 1.4% convertible bonds due 2003, convertible currently at ¥5,957 ($37.94) 
for o~e com~on shan~~. redeemable before due date 

Unsecured ·1 :4% convertible bonds due 2005, convertible currently at ¥8,790 ($55.99) 
for one common share, redeemable before due date 

Unsecured 73 /4% bonds of.. U.S.$1 00-,000 thousand due 1990 with detachable warrants, 
net of unamortized discount . .' . 

Unsecured 0.3% bonds of ¥100 billion due 1994 with detachable warrants, 
net of unamortized discount . 

Unsecu'red 8 '/4% bonds of U.S.$100,000 thousand due 1993 

Unsecu.red 9 :/so/o senior subordinated notes of U.S.$325 milli~n of a consolidated subsidiary, due 1998 . 

14 1/.o/o senior subordinat~d debentures of U.S.$28, 750 thousand of a consolidated subsidiary, due 2000, 
redeem9ble beginning June 1, 1990 . , . .. 

10 5/so/o senior subordinated debentures of U.S.$250,000 thousand of a consolidated subsidiary, due 2018, 
redeemable before due date. . ' . .. 

Unsecured 8.90% notes of ECU28,000 thousand of a consolidated subsidiary, due 1992, 
redeemable before due date . 

Guaranteed 5.0% bonds of a consolidated subsidiary, due 1996, redeemable before due date . 

Guaranteed 5.3% bonds of a consolidated subsidiary, due 1996, redeemable before due date . 

Long-term capital ) ease obligations, 6.2% to 24.4%, due 1990 to 2034 

G~arantee deposits received ' 

Less-Portion due within one year . , . . . .. , 
' 

Yen. in Dollars in 
millions thousands 

. '¥169,077 ,$1,076,923 

587,940 3,744,841 . 

¥757,017 $4,821,764 

Yen in Dollars in 
· millions thousands 

¥105,254 $ 670,408 

292 1,860 

2,671 't 17,013 

13,862 . 88,293 

58,208 370,751 

299,279 1,906,235 

15,800 100,637 

77,097 491,064 

15,902 101,287 

53,431 340,325 

4,872 31 ,032' 

42,943 273~522 

4,678 29,796 

2,000 12,739 

2,000 12,739 

20,564 1.30,981 

3,831 ' 24,401 

722,684 4,603,083 

76,715 488,631 

¥645,969 $4,114,452 

The 7 3/4% bonds of U.S.$1 00,000 thousand, with detachable 

warrants to purchase common stock of the company, were issued 

in certain circumstances). At March 31, 1990, 100,000 warrants 

issued in 1990 were outstanding and will expire on February 10, 1994. 

in 1985. One warrant is attached to each $5,000 bond and entitles 

the holders to subscribe ¥1,278,500 ($8, 143) fo~ sha~es of common. 

· stock of the company at ¥4,467 ($28.45) per share. At March .31, 

1990, 1 ,605 warrants issu~d i_n 1985 were outstanding and will 

expire on April 26, 1990. On February ,14, 1990, the· company issued 

the 0.3% bonds of ¥100 billion, with detachable warrants. One 

warrant is attached to each ¥1 ,000,000 bond and entitles the holders 

tQ subscribe ¥1 ,000,000 ($6,369) for sh~r~s of common stock of. 

the company at ¥8,437 ($53.74) per share (subject t0 adjustment 
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, The estimated fair values of the warrants at the time of issuances 

were crediteq to additional paid-in capital with a corresponding . 

charge to bond .discounts. These dis~ounts, which are netted a'gainst 

the face . amount of the bond, are being amortized over the lives of 

the bonds. The effective annual interest rates with respect to the 

7 3/Ho bonds due 1990 and the 0.3% bonds due 1994 are approxi

mately_1_1.35o/o and 6.2%, respectively, after giving effect to the 

amount. ~ssigned to the warrants. 



The agreement.s for the 1.4% convertible bonds due 2005 and 

the 0.3%' bonds due 1994 place certain restrictions on the creation 

of liens and call for the 111aintenance of a defined profit on a 

consolidation basis. 

The 14 '/2% senior subordinated debentures of $28,750 thousand 

and the 1 0 5/s% senior subordinated debentures of $250,000 thousand 

are scheduled for redemption on June 1, 1990. 

Year ending March 31 

1991 

1992 

1993 

1994 

1995 

The bas!c agreeme~ts with certain banks in Japan include provisions 

that collateral (including SUn:JS on deposit with such banks) br 

guarantors will be furnished upon the banks' request and that any 

collateral furnished, pursuant to such agreements or otherwise, 'will 

be applicable to all present or future indebtedness to such banks. 

1 0. Pension and severance plans 

The charges to income for pension and severance plans 

were ¥'9,935 million, ¥'14,791 million and ¥'16,_754 million 

($1 06,713 thousand) for the years ended March 31, 1988, 1989 

and 1990, respectively. 

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, 

the company adopted FAS 87 effective April 1, 1989. Accordingly, 

Net pension and severance cost (credit): 

Service cost-benefits earned during the year 

Interest cost on projected benefit obligation 

,'Actu~l return ~n plan assets 

Net amortization and deferral 

Net pension and severance cost for the year 
" 

Pension plans' funded status: 

Actuarial present value of obligation.s-

Vested benefit . 

Nonvested benefit . 

Accumulated benefit obligation . . ' . 

Additional benefits related to projected salary increase . 

Projected benefit obligation . 

Plan assets at fair value . 

Excess of projected benefit obligation over plan assets ' 
Unrecogni~ed net gain (loss) 

Unrecognized net transition asset : 

Net pension liability recognized in the balance sheet 

.. 
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Land and buildings witb a · book value of ¥'1 ,804 million 

($11 ,490 thousand) and ¥'858 million ($5,465 thousand), 

respectively, are mortgaged as security for the guaranteed bonds 

of consolidated subsidiaries. 

The aggregate amounts of annual maturities of long-term debt 

during the next five years are as follows: 

Yen in Dollars in 
millions thousands 

¥' 76,715 $488,631 

11,358 72,344 

43,350 276,115 

101,633 647,344 

21,437 136,541 

Althqugh the maintenance of official compensating balances 

in respect of bank loans and other credit arrangements is contrary 

to public policy in Japan, it is quite com'mon for a company to 

maintain time deposits with banks with which it has various credit 

arrangements. The company had ~ime deposits of ¥'2,~1 0 million 

($14,076 thousand) with such banks at March 31, 1990. 

the charges for the year ended March 31, 1990 were determined 

under the provisions of FAS ~7. 

Net pension and severance costs under FAS 87 for the year ended 

March 31, 1990 and the related pension plans' funded status and 

rate assumptions at March 31, 1990 are shown below: 

Japanese plans foreign plans 

Yen in Dollars in Yen in Dollars in 
millions thousands millions thousands 

¥' 11,316 $ 72,076 ¥' 4,728 $ 30,115 

.. 51919 37,701 2,292 14,599 

(5,948) (37,885) (2, 156) (13,733) 

591 3,764 12 76 

. ¥' 11,878 $ 75,656 ¥' 4,876 $ 31,057 . 

""\ 

¥' 69,235 $440,987 ¥'19,947 $127,051 

21,492 136,892 2,535 16,146 

90,727 577,879 I 22,482 143,197 

40,935 260,732 14,511 92,427 

131,662 838,611 36,993 235;624 

78,064 497,223 26,250 167,197 

53,598 341,388 10,743 68,427 

941 5,994 (466) (2,968) 

5,870 37,389 1,756 11,184 

¥' 60,409 $384,771 ¥'12,033 $ 76,643 



Assumptions in determination of net periodic pension costs: 

Discount rate . 

Long-term rate of salary increase 

Long-term rate of return on funded assets 

As of March 31, 1990, approximately 30% of the plan assets for 

Japanese plans and approximately 40% of those for foreign plans 

11. Income taxes 
The company is subject to a number of different income taxes 

which, in the aggregate, indicate an effective statutory rate in Japan 

of approximately 56% for the years ended March 31, 1988 and ·1989 

and 54% for the year ended March, 31, 1990. The ordinary relation

ship between income tax expense and pretax accounting income is 

distorted by a number of items inCluding various tax cr.'edits, certain 

expenses not allowable for income tax purposes, non-deductibility of 

losses of subsidiaries, different tax rates applicable to foreign sub

sidiaries, reduced tax rates on earnings appropriated for dividends 

and dividend income which is not ta~able. 

It has become apparent that the undistributed earnings of certain 

foreign subsidiaries on which income taxes have been accrued will 

not be remitted. As a result, the company reversed accrued taxes of 

12. Stockholde~s· equit,Y 

Japanese plans 

5.5% 

5.0% 

7.0% 

Foreign plans 

' 6.5- 9.5% 

4.0- 8.5% 

7.5-12.0o/o 

were invested in equity securities. The remainder was mainly invested 

in fixed income securities. 

¥8,915 million ($56, 783 thousand) as a credit to income taxes for 

the year ended March 31, 1990. At March 31, 1990, the undistributed 

earnings of foreign subsidiaries for w~kh income taxes have not 

been provided amounted to ¥74,808 milli<?n ($476,484 thousand). 

During the year ended March 31, 1990, deferred tax debits 

of·¥9,860 million ($62,803 thousand) recognized at certain foreign 

subsidiaries were written off as the future realization became doubtful. 

Net operating loss carryforwards of consolidat~d subsidiaries 

at March 31, 1990 amounted to approximately ¥36,852 million 

($234, 726 thousand) and are available as an offset against future 

earnings of such subsidia~ies. These carryforwards expire at various 

dat~s up to 15 years. 

Changes in common stock and additional paid-in capital have resulted from the following: 

Number of 
shares 

Balance at March 31, 1987 . , 231 ,236, 18'1 

Conversion of convertible debt 7,532,586 

Change in interest in consolidated subsidiary . -

Balance at March 31, 1988 . ~ 238,768,767 

Public offering of common stock 20,000,000 

Exercise of stock purchase warrants 3,086,210 

Conversion of convertible debt 20,747,946 

Balance at March 31, 1989 . 282,602,923 

Public offering of common stock 30,000,000 

Exercise of stock purchase warrants 2,176,272 

Conversion of convertible 'debt 17,149,535 

Common stock warrants . -.. 
Balance at Marc,h 31, 1990 . ~ 331,928,730_ 

The company made public offerings of 20,000,000 and 

30,000,000 shares of common stock on April21 , 1988 and July 20, 

1989, respectively, outside the United States of America and Canada, 

at respective prices of ¥5,453 ($34. 73) and ¥7,720 ($49.17) per 

share: In each case, the total proceeds were credited to the common 

s,tock account_..Q.QQ_ additional paid-in capital. 
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Yen in 
millions 

Additional 
Common paid-in 

stock capital 

¥ 11,975 ¥ 99,692 

11,690 . 17,949 

- 2,183 

23,665 119,824 

54,540 54,520 

6,898 6,895 

29,538 50,811 

114,641 232,050 

115,800 115,800 

4,864 4,862 

42,733 43,105 

- 23,600 

¥278,038 ¥419,417 

$ 

D,ollars in 
thousands 

Common 
stock 

76,274 $ 

74,458 

-

150,732 

347,389 

4;3,936 

188,140 

730,197 

737,580 

30,981 

272,185 

-

Additional 
paid-in 
capital 

634,981 

114,325 

13,905 

763,211 

347,261 

43,917 

323,637 

1,478,026 

737,580 

30,968 

,274,554 

150,318 

$1,770,943 $2,671,446 

During the year ended March 31, 1988, a consolidated subsidiary 

issued shares to third parties by a public offering at amounts per 

share in excess of the company's average per share carrying value. 

The increase, net of deferred tax, in the stockholders' equity of the 

subsidiary applicable to the company was credited to additional 

paid-in capital,' 



Conversions of convertible debt issued in 1983 and th~reafter into 

common stock are accounted for in accordance with the provisions 

of the Japanese Commercial Code by crediting one-half of the con

version proceeds to the common stock account and the other half to 

the additional paid-in capital account. For conversions of convertible 

bonds issued prior to 1983, the par value of the stock issued was 

credited to the common stock account and the remainder of 

conversion ·proceeds was credited to additional paid-in capital. 

The ' Japanese Commercial Code provides that an amount equal to 

at least 10% of cash dividends paid by the company and its Japanese 

subsidiaries be appropriated as a legal reserve. No further appropria

tion is required when the legal reserve equals 25% of stated capital. 

Balance, beginning of year 

Aggregate translation adJustment for the year 

Income taxes for the year allocated to translation adjustment . 

Balance, end of year . 

13. Research and development expenses 
Research and development expenses charge<;i to cost of sales 

for the years ended March 31 , 1988, 1989 and 1990 were 

14. Leased assets 

The company leases certain plant facilities, office space, warehouses, 

employees' residential facilities and other assets. 

Class of property 

Noncurrent inventories-film . 

Land 

Buil9ings 

Machinery and equipment 

Accu m u Ia ted amortization 

. 
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The appropriations of retained earnings for the year ended March 

31, 1990, which have been incorporated in the accompanying financial 

statements, will be proposed for approval at the general stockholders' 

meeting to be held in June 1990 and will be recorded in the statutory 

b0oks of account, in accordance with the Commercial Code, after 

stockholders' approval. 

. An analysis of the changes in the cumulative translation 

adjustment for the years ended March 31, 1988, 1989 and 1990 

is presented below: 

1988 

(¥50, 174) 

(17, 125) 

882 

(¥66,417) 

Yen in 
millions 

Year 
ended March 31 

1989 

(¥66,417) 
3,907 I 

603 

(¥61 ,907) 

1990 

(¥61 ,907) 

92;410 

(6,975) 

¥23,528 

Dollars in 
thousands 

Year 
. ended March 31, 

1990 

($39,4 •. ~ 12) 
588,599 

(44,427) 

I $149,860 

¥128,707 million, ¥142,077 million and ¥165,227 million 

($1 ,052,401 thousand), respectively. 

An analysis of leased assets under capital leases at March 31, 

1989 and 1990 is as follows: 

Yen in 
millions 

March 31 

1989 1990 

¥ - ¥ §,758 

996 748 

4,423 9,181 

3,212 3,199 

(1,934) (3,205) 

6,697 9,923 

¥6,697 ¥19,681 

Dollars in 
thousands 

March 31, 
1990 

$ 62,153 

4,764 

58,478 

20,376 
(20,414) 

63,204 

$125,357 



The following is a schedule by years of future minimum lease 

payments under capital leases together with the presenrvalue of the 

Year ending March 31 

1991 ., .. 
1992. 

1993. 

1994. .. 
1995. 

Later years 

Total minimum lease payments 

Less-Amount representing interest . . 

Present value of net minimum lease paymen'ts . 

Less-Current obligations 

Long-term capital lease obligations 

Rental expenses under operating leases for the years ended March 

31, 1988, 1989 and 199Q were ¥22,246 million, ¥28,708 million 

and ¥61,812 million ($393,707 thousand), respectively. The minimum 

Year ending March 31 

1991 . 

1992. 

1993. 

1994. 

1995. 

Later years 

Total minimum future rentals . 

15. Commitments and contingent liabilities 
Commitments outstanding at March 31, 1990 for the purchase 

of property, plant and equipment and other assets approximated 

¥103,074 million ($656,522 thousand). 

Contingent liabilities at March 31, 1990 for notes discounted 

and guarantees given in the ordinary course of business amounted 

to approximately ¥70,811 million ($451 ,025 thousand), including 

¥802 million ($5, 108 thousand) for loans guaranteed on behalf 

of affil iated companies. 

Certain subsidiaries in the record and music industry entered into 

long-term contracts with recording artists and companies for the 
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net minimum lease payments as of March 31, 1990: 

,. 

Yen in 
millions 

¥ 4,008 

3,741 

2,768 

2,691 

'2,512 

8,648 

24,368 

3,804 

20,564 

3,640 

¥16,924 

Dollars in 
thousands 

$ ?5,529 

23,828 

17,630 

17,140 

16,000 

55,083 

155,210 

24,229 

130,981 

2'3, 185 

$107,796 

rental payments required under operating leases that have initial 

or remain ing noncancelable lease terms in excess of one year 

, at March 31, 1990 are as follows: 

Yen in Dollars in 
millions , thousands 

¥ 25,966 $ 165,388 

22,405 142,707 

18,929 120,567 

14,530 92,548 

13,315 84,809 

92,597 589,790 

¥187,742 $1,195,809 

production and/or distribution of records, tapes, compact discs afld 

videos. These contracts cover various periods mainly through March 

31, 19.93. As of March 31, 1990, these subsidiaries were committed 

to make payments under such long-term contracts of ¥38,561 million 

($245,611 thousand). 

At March 31, 1990, the parent company and its subsidiaries 

and affiliates had no material litigation or claims outstanding, .pending 

or threatened against them. 

; • 



REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS 

Price 1Vaterh(Juse 
May 21, 1990' 

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors 

of Sony Corporation (Sony Kabushiki Kaisha) 

Aoyama Building 
2·3, Kita·Aoyama 1-chome 
Minato·ku, Tokyo 107 

Telephone: 03·404·9351 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Sony Corporation and its consolidated subsidiaries as of March 31, 1989 

and 1990, and the related consolidat~d statements of income and retained .earnings and of cash flows for each of the three years in the period 

ended March 31, 1990, expressed in yen. These financial statements are the responsibility of the company's management. Our responsibility 

is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our ~udits. 

We conduc;:ted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit 

to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of ·material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a 

test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting prin

ciples used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that 

our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

The cor:npany has not presented segment information for each of the three years in the period ended Ma,rch 31, 1990. In our opinion, 

the presentation of segment information concerning operations in different industries, and foreign operations and e~port sales is required by 

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America for' a complete presentation of the consolidated financial statements. 

In our opinion, except for the omission cif segment information as discussed in the third paragraph of this report, the consolidated financial 

statements audited by •US present fairly, in all material respects, t_he financial position of Sony ~orporation and its consolidated subsidiaries at 

March 31, 1989 and 1990, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended March 31, 

1990, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the company changed· its method of accounting for pension costs in the year 

ended M?rch 31, 1990 in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 87, Employers' Accounting for Pensions. 
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED COMPANIES 

OVERSEAS 

NORTH AMERICA 

• UNITED STATES 
Sony USA Inc. 
Financial, tax, and administrative services 
to its subsidiaries ' 

Sony Corporation of America 
Manufacture and sale of Sony products 
in the United States 

Digital Audio Disc Corporation 
Manufacture and sale of compact discs 
and laserdiscs 

CBS Records Inc. 
Record operation, including production, 
manufacture, and sale of records, tapes, 
compact discs, and video software 

Columbia Pictures Entertainment, Inc. 
Production, worldwide aistribution, and 
exploitation of feature-length motion pictures 
and televisiorr' programs; the theatrical exhibition 
of motion pictures 

Materials Research Corporation 
Manufacture and sale of sputtering and etching 
equipment, high-purity metal materials, and ' 
ceramic substrates 

Sony Trans Com Inc. 
Manufacture and sale of airborne audio and 
visual entertainment systems; dist'ribution service 
of audio and visual programs 

• CANADA 
Sony of Canada Ltd. 
Sale of Sony products in Canada 

ciN1-iiii .,4,\Jo ·sijifi-ii "Ai.iiilicA ..... . 
• PANAMA 
Sony Corporation of Panama S.A. ,, 
Sale of Sony products in Central and South America 

• BRAZil 
Sony Comercio e Industria Ltda. 
Manufacture of Sony products in Brazil 

i:uiloPF · · · · · · ·· · · · ··· ··· ··· ········ 
• WEST GERMANY 
Sony Europa G.m.b.H. 
Coordination of Sony operati_ons in Europe 

Sony Deutschland G.m.b.H. 
Sale of Sony products in West Germany 

Sony-Wega Produktions G.m.b.H. 
Manufacture and sale of Sony products 

• UNITED KINGDOM 
Sony (U.K.) Limited 
Manufacture and sale of Sony products 
in the United Kingdom 

Sony Broadcast and Communications 
Limited · 
Sales headquarters of broadcast- and 
professional-use video and audio equipment 
in Europe, Africa, and the Middle East 

• FRANCE 
Sony france S.A. 
Manufacture and sale of Sony products in France 

• SWITZERlAND 
Sony Overs~as S.A: 
Sale of Sony products, foreign exchange, 
and financial operations in Europe 

Sony (Schweiz) A,G. 
Sale of Sony products in Switzerland 

• THE NETHfRlANDS 
Sony Logistics Europe B.V. 
Logistics in Europe (transportation, cargo work, 
and warehousing) 

Sony Euro financeB.V. 
Issue of Euro-comrnercial paper 

Sony Communication Products B.V. 
Distribution of business- and professional -use 
products in Europe, Africa, and the Middle East 

Sony Nederland B. V. 
Sale of Sony products in the Netherlands 

• BElGIUM 
Sony Service Centre (Europe) N. V. 
Repair and service of Sony products in Europ~ 

Sony Belgium N~V. 
Sale of Sony products in Belgium 

• DENMARK 
Sony Scandinavia A/S · 
Sale of Sony products in Scandinavia 

• AUSTRIA 
Sony Ges.m.b.H. 
Sale of Sony products in Austria 

DADC Austria Ges.m.b.H. 
Manufacture and sale of compact discs 

• ITAlY 
Sony ltalia S.p.A. 
Manufacture and sale of Sony products in Italy 

• SPAIN 
Sony Espana, S.A. 
Manufacture and sale of Sony products in Spain 

48 

THE MIDDLE EAST 

• SAUDI ARABIA 

Sony Saudi Arabian Company Ltd. 
Manufacture and sale of Sony Language 
Laboratory systems in Saudi Arabia 

ASIA 

• HONG KONG 
Sony Corporation of Hong Kong Limited 
Sale of Sony products in Hong Kong 
and Southeast Asia 

• SINGAPORE 
Sony International (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. 
Procurement, repair, and service in Asia 
and Oceania; offshore trade ' 

Sony Singapore Pte. Ltd. 
Sale of Sony products in Singapore 

Sony Precision Engineering Center 
(Singapore) Pte: Ltd. 
Production t~chnology support to other Sony 
manufacturing facilities in the Asian NIES; 
manufacture and sale of precision parts 
and components 

Sony Logistics (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. 
Logistics in Southeast Asia (transportation, 
cargo work, and warehousi~g) 

• MAlAYSIA 
Sony TV Industries (M) Sdn. Bhd. 
Manufacture of color television sets, 
deflection yokes, and television tuners 

Sony Electronics (M) Sdn. Bhd. 
Manufacture of audio products 

• THAilAND 
Sony Magnetic Products (Thailand) 
Co., Ltd. 
Manufacture of videotapes and audiotapes 

• KOREA 
Korea Toyo Radio Co., Ltd. 
Manufacture and sale of audio products 
and precision components 

• TAIWAN 

Sony Video Tai~an Co., Ltd. 
Manufacture of VTRs 

OCEANIA 

• AUSTRAliA 
Sony (Australia) Pty. Limited 
Sale of Sony products in-Australia, New Zealand, 
and the South Pacific Islands 



JAPAN 

Sony Kisarazu Corporation 
Manufacture of VTRs and CD players 

Sony Kohda Corporation 
Manufacture of VTRs and laserdisc players 

Sony Minokamo Corporation 
Manufacture of 8mm video camcorders 
and high-density circuit boards 

Sony Broadcast Products Corporation 
Manufacture of broadcast- and professional-use 
audio products, VTRs, cameras, and optical systems 

lwate Toyo Corporation 
Manufacture of car stereos and telephones 

Sony ltakura Corporation 
Manufacture of audio products 

Taron Corporation 
Manufacture of audio and video products 

Sony Tsukuba Corporation 
Manufacture of au?io products 

Tohoku Toyo Corporation 
Manufacture of audio and mobile electronics 
products 

Sony Bonson Corporation 
Manufacture of headphone stereos and CD players 

Sony lchinomiya Corporation 
Manufacture of color TVs and VTRs 

Sony Denshi Corporation 
Manufacture of professional-use color display 
monitors, color TVs, and components 
for televisions 

Sony lnazawa Corporation 
Manufacture of color TV tubes 

Sony Mizunami Corporation 
Manufacture of color TV tubes 

Motomiya Denshi Corporation 
Manufacture of electron guns, deflection yokes, 
and monochrome flat CRTs 

Sony Magnetic Products, Inc. 
Manufacture of magnetic and optical recording 
media and electronic components 

Sony Oita Corporation 
Manufacture of semiconductors 

Sony Kokubu Semiconductor 
Corporation 
Manufacture of semiconductors 

Sony Shiroishi Semiconductor Inc. 
Manufacture of semiconductors 

Sony Nagasaki Corporation 
Manufacture of semiconductors 

Sony Digital Products Inc. 
Manufacture of audio products and computers 

Sound System Corporation 
Manufacture of drums for professional-use VTRs, 
optical pickups for CDs and videodisc players, 
and high-density circuit boards 

Max Precision Products Corporation 
Manufacture of precision components, 
molding dies, and ~A systems 

Sony Asco Inc. 
Manufacture of MFDDs, HDDs, CD-ROMs, 
and printer systems 

Sony Engineering Corporation 
Design and engineering of electronic products 

Sony Procurement Service Corporation 
In ternational procurement and distribution 
services for parts and components 

Sony Shoji Corporation 
Lease of real estate 

Sony Magnetic Tape Sales Corporation 
Sale of magnetic tapes 

Sony Enterprise Co., ltd. 
Operation of the Sony Building and Sony Tower; 
import of athletic goods; sa les promotion and 
licensing; travel; language education; and 
insurance services 

Sony Logistics Corporation 
Warehousing; packing of cargo; airfreight 
forwarding; and transportation services 

Sony Service Co., ltd. 
Repair and se~ice of Sony products 

Sony Trading Corporation 
Import and distribution of overseas products 

Sony Energytec Inc. · . 
Manufacture and sa le of batteries 

Sony finance International, Inc. 
Credit, lease, and finance; rental of Sony · 
products; and insuran,ce services 

CBS/Sony . Group Inc. 
Manufacture and sale of compact discs, music 
tapes, phonograph records, videocassettes, 
and laserdiscs 

Sony Creative Products Inc. 
Design, manufacture, and sale of stationery, 
gift goods, and cosmetics; sale of juvenile audio
visual equipment; and licensing of designs, 
copyrights, ·and trademarks 

Sony PCL Inc. 
Video and HDVS editing; video duplication; 
image transfers and conversions; film processings; 
and rental of video display systems 

Sony Chemicals Corporation 
Manufacture and sale of videotapes, adhesives, 
and electronic components 

Sony Magnescale Inc. 
Manufacture and sale of digital position readout 
and gauging systems, CNC systems, 
instrumentation recorders, and high-speed video 
duplicating systems 

Sony Plaza Co., , ltd. 
Import, wholesale, and retail of household goods, 
cosmetics, and confectioneries 

Aiwa Co., Ltd. 
'Manufacture and sale of audio products, VTRs, 
and modems 

Sony Pruco Life Insurance Co., Ltd. 
Life insurance 

Sony/Tektronix Corporation 
Manufacture, sale, and service of electronic 
measurement and computer graphic 'products 

As of March 31, 1990, the Company has 576 consolidated subsidiaries and has adopted the equity 
accounting method in respect to its 3 affiliated companies. The above table gives the main business 
of the Company's principal subsidiaries and affiliated companies as of April 30, 1990. 
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INVESTOR INFORMATION 

• Sony Corporation 
7-35, Kitashinagawa 6-chome, Shinagawa-ku, Tokyo 141, Japan 

Phone: (03) 448-2111 

Facsimile: (03) 448-2244 

Telex: 22262 (SONYCORP J22262) 

Cable: SONYCORP TOKYO 

• Date of l:stablishment 
May 1946 

• Investor Relations Offices 
Japan 

Sony Corporation 
Investor Relations 

Corporate Affairs 
7-35, Kitashinagawa 6-chome, Shi.nagawa-ku, Tokyo 141 

Phbne: (03) 448-2111 

U.S.A. 
Sony USA Inc. 
Corporate financial Communications 

9 West 57th Street, New York, NY 1 0019 

Phone: (212) 371-5800 

U.K. 
Sony (U.K.) Limited 
Investor Relations 

Sony House, South Street, Staines, Middlesex TW18 4Pf 

Phone: 0784-467000 

• Independent Auditors 
Price Waterhouse 

Tokyo, Japan 
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• Depositary, Transfer Agent, and Registrar 
for Ameriqm Depositary Receipts 

Morgan Guaranty Trust Company of New York 

New York, New York 

• Co-Transfer Agents and Co-Registrars 
Continental Illinois National Bank and Trust Company of Chicago 

Chicago, Illinois 

Bank of America National Trust and Savings Association 

San Francisco, California 

The Royal Trust Company 

(Co-Transfer Agent only) 

Montreal, Canada 

National Trust Company, Limited 

(Co-Registrar only) 

Toronto, Canada 

• Overseas Stock l:xchange Listings 
New York, London, Amsterdam, Pacific, Paris, Frankfurt, Dusseldorf, 

Brussels, Antwerp, Vienna, Toronto, Montreal, Vancouver, Midwest, 

Zurich, Basle, and Geneva stock exchanges 

• Japanese Stock l:xchange Listings 
Tokyo, Osaka, Nagoya, Fukuoka, and Sapporo stock exchanges 








